
 

 

 

 
Saltash Town Council 

Konsel An Dre Essa  
 

The Guildhall 
12 Lower Fore Street 

Saltash 
PL12 6JX 

Telephone: 01752 844846 
www.saltash.gov.uk 

 

21 September 2022 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
I write to summon you to the Meeting of The Planning and Licensing Committee 
to be held at the Guildhall on Tuesday 27th September 2022 at 6.30 pm. 
 
The meeting is open to members of the public and press.  Any member of the public 
requiring to put a question to the Town Council must do so by 12 noon the day 
before the meeting either by email to enquiries@saltash.gov.uk or sent to The 
Guildhall, 12 Lower Fore Street, Saltash PL12 6JX. Please provide your full name 
and indicate if you will be present at the meeting.  
 
Planning applications can be viewed by Members of the Council prior to the meeting 
on the Cornwall Council’s website www.cornwall.gov.uk.  Members of the public may 
view planning applications during normal working hours of 9:30 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. 
online at Saltash Library.  
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
S Burrows 
Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
To: 

Essa Tamar Trematon 

R Bickford 
R Bullock 
G Challen 
J Foster 
M Griffiths 
S Lennox-Boyd 

L Challen 
J Dent (Vice-Chairman) 
S Gillies 
S Martin 
J Peggs 
P Samuels 

S Miller 
B Samuels (Chairman) 
B Stoyel 
D Yates 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.saltash.gov.uk/
mailto:enquiries@saltash.gov.uk
http://www.cornwall.gov.uk/


 

 

Agenda 
 
1.   Health and Safety Announcements.   

 
2.   Apologies.   

 
3.   Declarations of Interest:   

 
a. To receive any declarations from Members of any registerable (5A of the 

Code of Conduct) and/or non-registerable (5B) interests in matters to be 
considered at this meeting. 

 
b. The Town Clerk to receive written requests for dispensations prior to the start 

of the meeting for consideration. 
 

4.   Questions - A 15-minute period when members of the public may ask questions 
of Members of the Council.   
 
Please note: Any member of the public requiring to put a question to the Town 
Council must do so by 12 noon the day before the meeting. 
 

5.   To receive and approve the minutes from the Planning and Licensing 
Committee held on Tuesday 16th August 2022 as a true and correct record.  
(Pages 7 - 12) 
 

6.   To consider Risk Management reports as may be received.   
 

7.   Planning:  (Pages 13 - 18) 
 
a. To note that Councillor Lennox-Boyd will vote upon the information before her 

at the meeting but in the light of subsequent information received at Cornwall 
Council, Councillor Lennox-Boyd may vote differently at that meeting. 

 
b. To note that if Councillor Lennox-Boyd wishes to recommend opposite to the 

Town Council’s view she will contact the Town Council by email. Considering 
time constraints, the Town Council will then hold an online poll of Councillors 
to determine whether to accept the Officer’s view or to ask for the application 
to be called into committee. The results of these polls will be read into the 
record at the next Town Council meeting. Members of the public may 
request, via the Clerk, to be copied into any correspondence. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 

c. Applications for consideration:  
 

PA22/06558 
Katrina Darby - 307 New Road Saltash Cornwall PL12 6HL 
Creation of vehicular parking area including new permeable drive, retaining 
walls and drop kerb 
Ward: Tamar 
Date received: 17/08/22 
Response date: 04/10/22 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RF48EUFG
H5K00 
 
PA22/07281 
N/A Saltash United Assoc. Football Club - Kimberley Stadium Callington 
Road Saltash Cornwall 
Application for installation of a three-sided covered stand to provide shelter 
for spectators watching football during inclement weather and increase 
covered standing facilities. 
Ward: Essa 
Date Received: 16/08/22 
Response date: 04/10/22. 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGAZE7FG
JA700 
 
PA22/07532 
Miss Elise Wilkes-Brand – Land North of 64 St Stephens Road Warfelton 
Crescent Saltash PL12 4BJ 
Construction of one new residential dwelling. 
Ward: Essa 
Date Received: 25/08/22 
Response date: 04/10/22 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGPPV2FG
KF300 

 
PA22/07694 
Mr Philip Jones – Dunelm Longlands Lane Burraton Coombe PL12 4QD 
Non material amendment in relation to decision notice nos. PA19/03668 
dated 18.07.2019 for roof to be amended to new grey stone tiles, all 
elevations off white render to first floor omitted and replaced with cladding in 
grey/brown, additional balcony section added to join existing balconies into 
one single balcony. 
Ward: Trematon 
Date received: 08/09/22 
Response date: 04/10/22 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RH0INQFGJ
4F00 

Page 3

https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RF48EUFGH5K00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RF48EUFGH5K00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RF48EUFGH5K00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGAZE7FGJA700
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGAZE7FGJA700
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGAZE7FGJA700
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGPPV2FGKF300
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGPPV2FGKF300
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGPPV2FGKF300
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RH0INQFGJ4F00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RH0INQFGJ4F00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RH0INQFGJ4F00


 

 

PA22/07916 
Mr Rod Murrain – Burrell Lodge Longlands St Stephens PL12 4QH 
Hedgerow removal notice to install new field gate access. 
Ward: Trematon 
Date received: 14/09/22 
Response date: 05/10/22 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHF0R8FG
L0100 

 
PA22/07919 
Mr Philip Jones – Dunelm Longlands Lane Burraton Coombe PL12 4QD 
Non material amendment in relation to decision notice PA19/08822 dated 
04.03.2020 for roof tiles to new garage to be in grey stone tile, garage 
elevations to be finished in grey natural stone. 
Ward: Trematon 
Date received: 08/09/22 
Response date: 04/10/22 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQTY1FG
JBN00 

 
PA22/08129 
Mr & Mrs S Ball – 25 Grassmere Way Saltash PL12 6XE 
First floor side extension over existing garage. 
Ward: Tamar 
Date received: 08.09.22. 
Response date: 04/10/22 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQTY1FG
JBN00 

 
d. Tree Applications: 

 
PA22/07212 
Operational Manager Alastair Spencer Cornwall Housing Ltd – 1-15 Babis 
Farm Close St Stephens Cornwall PL12 4TG 
Works to trees subject to a Tree Preservation Order (TPO), works to T7 
Lawson Cypress, T9 Oak, T12 Ash, G2 Sycamore and Ash and G9 
Sycamore as per attached tree works schedule. 
Ward: Essa 
Date received: 05/09/22 
Response date: 04/10/22 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RG56UGFG
HXY00 

 
 
 
 

Page 4

https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHF0R8FGL0100
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHF0R8FGL0100
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHF0R8FGL0100
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQTY1FGJBN00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQTY1FGJBN00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQTY1FGJBN00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQTY1FGJBN00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQTY1FGJBN00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQTY1FGJBN00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RG56UGFGHXY00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RG56UGFGHXY00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RG56UGFGHXY00


 

 

PA22/07351 
Mr Matt Phillips Cormac - Land Opposite 363 New Road Saltash Cornwall 
PL12 6HL  
Application for works to tree subject to Tree Preservation order namely fell 
one Ash Tree (T1) 
Ward: Tamar 
Date Received: 15/08/22 
Response date: 04/10/22 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGEOJ5FG
L8H00 

 
PA22/07700 
Mr Jon Mackeen Westcountry Woodland and Tree Management Ltd - 219 
Callington Road Saltash Cornwall PL12 6LN 
Works to trees subject to a Tree Preservation Order which includes T2 
Magnolia, crown lift to a height of approx. 2.5m to allow access to property 
and parking area. 
Ward: Tamar 
Date received: 18/08/2022 
Response date: 04/10/22 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RH0O8XFG
J9U00 

 
PA22/08092 
Miss Donna Jordan – 28 The Brook Saltash PL12 6UL 
G1, Ash, Previously pollarded/reduced around 4 to 5 years ago, signs of Ash 
Die back, requesting to reduce back to previous cuts, reduction of vertical 
height of 4m and lateral growth back over the fence line, up to 2m. 
Ward: Tamar 
Date received: 12/09/22 
Response date: 04/10/22 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQ4RDFG
IS300 

 
e. Tree notifications: 
 

PA22/08143 
Pearce – Castle Gardens Castle Hill Forder Cornwall PL12 4QW 
Works to trees within conservation area – Removal of T3, T4 (Ash), T5 
(Sycamore) and T8 (Ash).  G1 x 6 (Sycamore) – height reduction and T9 
(Sycamore) height reduction. 
Ward: Trematon 
Date received: 06/09/22 
Response date: 04/10/22 
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHRZF1FG
K1800 

Page 5

https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGEOJ5FGL8H00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGEOJ5FGL8H00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RGEOJ5FGL8H00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RH0O8XFGJ9U00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RH0O8XFGJ9U00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RH0O8XFGJ9U00
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQ4RDFGIS300
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQ4RDFGIS300
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHQ4RDFGIS300
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHRZF1FGK1800
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHRZF1FGK1800
https://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RHRZF1FGK1800


 

 

 
8.   To receive Cornwall Council Licensing Authority - Draft Revised Gambling Act 

Statement Statement of Principles and consider any actions.  (Pages 19 - 80) 
 

9.   To receive a Pre-Application Presentation for the Land north of Broad Lane and 
west of Duck Lane, Trematon - GRC Planning Ltd.  (Pages 81 - 84) 
Please note: The Pre-Application is for Councillors information only not 
for debate.  

   
10.   Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960   

To resolve that pursuant to Section 1(2) of the Public Bodies (Admission to 
meetings) Act 1960 the public and press leave the meeting because of the 
confidential nature of the business to be transacted. 

   
11.   To consider any items referred from the main part of the agenda.   
   
12.   Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960:   

To resolve that the public and press be re-admitted to the meeting. 
   
13.   To consider urgent non-financial items at the discretion of the Chairman.   

 
14.   To confirm any press and social media releases associated with any agreed 

actions and expenditure of the meeting.   
 

Date of Next Meeting: Tuesday 18 October 2022 at 6.30 pm 

Page 6



229 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the  Meeting of the Planning and Licensing Committee held at the 
Guildhall on Tuesday 16th August 2022 at 6.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Councillors: R Bickford, R Bullock, J Dent (Vice-Chairman), 

S Gillies, M Griffiths, S Miller, J Peggs, B Samuels (Chairman), 
P Samuels, B Stoyel and D Yates. 

 
ALSO PRESENT: 1 Member of the Public, S Burrows (Town Clerk), F Morris 

(Planning and General Administrator) and S Webber (Service 
Delivery Manager) 

 
APOLOGIES: G Challen, L Challen, J Foster, S Lennox-Boyd and S Martin.   

. 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 
51/22/23 HEALTH AND SAFETY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
The Chairman informed those present of the actions required in the 
event of a fire or emergency. 
 
 

52/22/23 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST: 
 
a. To receive any declarations from Members of any registerable (5A of 

the Code of Conduct) and/or non-registerable (5B) interests in 
matters to be considered at this meeting. 
 

Councillor Agenda 
Item 

Pecuniary/No
n-Pecuniary 

Reason Left 
Meeting 

Griffiths PA22/06714 Non-Pecuniary Next door 
neighbour 

Yes 

 
 
b. The Town Clerk to receive written requests for dispensations prior to 

the start of the meeting for consideration. 
 
None. 

 
 

53/22/23 QUESTIONS - A 15-MINUTE PERIOD WHEN MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL. 
 
None. 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



230 

54/22/23 TO RECEIVE AND APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE PLANNING 
AND LICENSING COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY 19TH JULY 
2022 AS A TRUE AND CORRECT RECORD. 
 
Please see a copy of the minutes on the STC website or request to see 
a copy at the Guildhall. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor B Samuels, seconded by Councillor Dent 
and RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning and Licensing 
Committee held on Tuesday 19th July 2022 were confirmed as a true 
and correct record. 
 
 

55/22/23 TO CONSIDER RISK MANAGEMENT REPORTS AS MAY BE 
RECEIVED. 
 
None. 
 
 

56/22/23 PLANNING: 
 
a. To note that Councillor Lennox-Boyd will vote upon the information 

before her at the meeting but in the light of subsequent information 
received at Cornwall Council, Councillor Lennox-Boyd may vote 
differently at that meeting. 

 
b. To note that if Councillor Lennox-Boyd wishes to recommend 

opposite to the Town Council’s view she will contact the Town 
Council by email. Considering time constraints, the Town Council will 
then hold an online poll of Councillors to determine whether to accept 
the Officer’s view or to ask for the application to be called into 
committee. The results of these polls will be read into the record at 
the next Town Council meeting. Members of the public may request, 
via the Clerk, to be copied into any correspondence. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



231 

c. Applications for consideration:  
 

PA22/06305 
Mr D Bennetts Modol Ltd  – Cornwall Council Public 
Conveniences Callington Road Saltash  
Erection of one detached dwelling. 
Ward: Tamar 
Date received: 13/07/22 
Response date: 19/07/22 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Peggs, seconded by Councillor Miller 
to resolve to RECOMMEND REFUSAL, but following a vote, the 
proposal did not carry. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor P Samuels, seconded by Councillor 
Bullock and resolved to RECOMMEND APPROVAL.  
 
 
PA22/06358 
Mr Dominic Maunder – 309 New Road Saltash PL12 6HL 
Creation of vehicular parking area including new permeable drive, 
retaining walls and drop kerb. 
Ward: Tamar 
Date received: 25/07/22 
Response date: 19/08/22 
It was proposed by Councillor P Samuels, seconded by Councillor 
Peggs and resolved to RECOMMEND APPROVAL. 
  
 
PA22/06572 
Mr & Mrs Hutchings – Tredown Farm Road From Elmgate 
Crossways To Cattle Grid South West of Tredown Farm Elmgate 
Saltash PL12 4QY 
Siting of two glamping pods and associated works. 
Ward: Trematon 
Date received: 25/07/22 
Response date: 19/08/22 
It was proposed by Councillor Yates, seconded by Councillor Stoyel 
and resolved to RECOMMEND APPROVAL. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



232 

PA22/06581 
Mr T Smith – The Stables Manor Farm Trematon Saltash 
Creation of garages for the Stables and The Shippen (revision of 
Application No. PA18/03187). 
Ward: Trematon 
Date received: 27/07/22 
Response date: 19/07/22 
It was proposed by Councillor Yates, seconded by Councillor Miller 
and resolved to RECOMMEND APPROVAL. 
 
Councillor Griffiths declared an interest in the next agenda item and 
left the meeting. 
 
PA22/06714 
Mr Mark Kelly – 25 Essa Road Saltash PL12 4EE 
Demolition of porch to North West side of dwelling and construction 
of new porch to North East side.  Conversion and extension of 
integral garage at lower ground floor level to create kitchen/dining 
and living room.  Creation of new South West facing balcony at 
ground floor level. 
Ward: Essa 
Date received: 01/08/22 
Response date: 22/08/22 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor 
Bullock and resolved to RECOMMEND APPROVAL.  
 
Councillor Griffiths was invited and returned to the meeting. 
 
PA22/06957 
Lindsey East – 3 Wearde Quay Wearde End Cottage Wearde 
Road St Stephens PL12 4AT 
Conservatory and two roof dormers 
Ward: Essa 
Date received 09/08/22 
Response date: 30/08/22 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor 
Bullock and resolved to RECOMMEND APPROVAL.  
 
 
PA22/06958 
Lindsey East – 3 Wearde Quay Wearde End Cottage Wearde 
Road St Stephens PL12 4AT 
Listed building consent for a Conservatory and two roof dormers. 
Ward: Essa 
Date received: 09/08/22 
Response date: 30/08/22 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor 
Bullock and resolved to RECOMMEND APPROVAL.  
 
 

Page 10



233 

d. Tree Applications: 
 
 
PA22/06284 
Matt Philips Cornwall Council – Milestone New Road Saltash 
Fell dying Ash Tree in addition to works approved under 
PA22/02132. 
Ward: Tamar 
Date received: 09/08/22 
Response date: 30/08/22 
It was proposed by Councillor Peggs, seconded by Councillor Dent 
and resolved to RECOMMEND APPROVAL. 
 

 
PA22/06297 
Mr & Mrs Elizabeth & Alexander Warren – Coombe Florey Babis 
Lane Saltash PL12 4ET 
Works to trees subject to a Tree Preservation Order (TPO), works 
include cut back trees/bushes as per tree report attached. 
Ward: Essa 
Date received: 18/07/22 
Response date: 19/08/22 
 
The Chairman informed Members of the Saltash Town Council 
Voluntary Tree Wardens’ Report.  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor 
Bullock and resolved to RECOMMEND APPROVAL subject to 
clarification that the oak tree will be retained. 
 

 
57/22/23 PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960 

 
To resolve that Pursuant to Section 1(2) of the Public Bodies 
(Admissions to Meetings) Act 1960 the public and press leave the 
meeting because of the confidential nature of the business to be 
transacted. 
 
 

58/22/23 TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE MAIN PART OF 
THE AGENDA 
 
None. 
 
 

59/22/23 PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960 
 
To resolve that the public and press be re-admitted to the meeting 
 
 

Page 11



234 

60/22/23 TO CONSIDER URGENT NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN. 
 
None. 
 
 

61/22/23 TO CONFIRM ANY PRESS AND SOCIAL MEDIA RELEASES 
ASSOCIATED WITH ANY AGREED ACTIONS AND EXPENDITURE 
OF THE MEETING. 
 
None. 
 
 

 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday 20 September 2022 at 6.30 pm 
 
Rising at: 7.00 pm 

 
 

Signed:  

 Chairman 
 

Dated: 
 
 

Page 12



SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
 

VOLUNTARY TREE WARDENS REPORT 
 

PA22/07212 – 1-15 Babis Farm Close, St Stephens, PL12 4TG. 
 
 
(TPOs) we have no objection to this work in Babis Farm. It consists of some removal 
of ivy and pruning for clearance around houses and over parking areas. Also, one 
large branch will be removed from the ash tree T12, but again we have no objection 
as the branch currently makes the tree lopsided and unbalanced - and this ash tree is 
currently healthy so well worth looking after.  
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
 

VOLUNTARY TREE WARDENS REPORT 
 

PA22/07351 Land Opposite 363 New Road New Road Saltash PL12 6HL 

 
 

This application refers to that row of 11 ash trees alongside New Road, above 

Pollards Way, several of which will need removal for ash die back. Some, but not all, 

these trees are protected by TPOs. This application refers to the second individual 

protected tree that needs removal in the near future.  

Councillors already approved 1) the original bulk application in March 2022 

(PA22/02132), subject to Forestry discussing replacements with Tree Wardens; and 

2) the first application for permission to fell an individual tree T8 which was approved 

in August PA22/06284. 

The tree wardens have had discussion with the Tree Officer on suitable replacement 

trees, and have approved a list of tree species that are narrow (some fastigiate), of 

moderate height, interesting and varied, and with light canopies. We believe the 

choices are suitable for their roadside amenity value, with minimal overhanging and 

shading of the residences.  

The Tree Wardens recommend acceptance of the application. We note that the 

attached schedule refers to replacement with holm oak, which is NOT on the 

approved list - it is too large and has a dense canopy. However, the Tree Officer has 

already discussed this with the contractor and corrected the choice of species.  

 
Adrian White 
Saltash Voluntary Tree Warden 

 

Page 14



To: STC Planning Administrator 
From: Georgia Rowe, CC Planning Officer. 
Date: 20.09.22. 
 
Subject: PA22/07351 - Land Opposite 363 New Road Saltash PL12 6HL 
 
Good afternoon  
 
The tree is T15 in the TPO, however in the ‘Street Tree Work Schedules’ and 
subsequent plans it is referred to as T1 (as stated on the application form). The 
location of this tree is opposite to 363 New Road, for ease of reference I’ve attached 
a screenshot where I’ve circled the location of the tree in red. 
 
Hope this helps. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Georgia Rowe | Introductory Development Officer 
Cornwall Council | Development Management – Regulatory Services 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



From: STC Planning Administrator Sent: 20 September 2022 13:27 
To: Georgia Rowe, CC Planning Officer. 
Date: 20.09.22. 
 
Subject: PA22/07351 - Land Opposite 363 New Road Saltash PL12 6HL 
 
 
Good afternoon  
 
I am emailing with regard to the above application. 
 
The Consultee Letter to Saltash Town Council states that the address is Land 
Opposite 363 New Road Saltash PL12 6HL.  However, on Cornwall Council’s Planning 
Portal I note that the address is stated as Land North of 343 to 369 New Road, Saltash 
PL12 6HL. 
 
Please would you kindly let me know the correct location? 
 
Thank you for your time in this matter. 
 
Kind regards 
 
 

Page 16



SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 

VOLUNTARY TREE WARDENS REPORT 

 

PA22/07700 – 219 Callington Road, Saltash, PL12 6LN. 

 

This work on the fine magnolia was approved in November 2019, (though work to an 

oak in the same application was not approved). It was noted that the work to the 

magnolia was never undertaken, and the permission lapsed after 2 years. The 

situation has not changed, and we still raise no objection to the work.  

 

Page 17



SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
 

VOLUNTARY TREE WARDENS REPORT 
 

PA22/08092 - 28 The Brook, Saltash, PL12 6UL 
 
 

Proposal: G1, Ash, Previously pollarded/ reduced around 4 to 5 yearrs ago, signs of 
Ash Die back, requesting to reduce back to previous cuts, reduction of vertical height 
of 4m, and lateral growth back over the fence line, up to 2m..  

Two Tree Wardens visited the site on 24th September, and can find no reason to 
reject the application 

 
Adrian White 
Saltash Voluntary Tree Warden 

 

Page 18



SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
 

VOLUNTARY TREE WARDENS REPORT 
 

PA22/08143 – Castle Gardens, Castle Hill, Forder, PL12 4QW 
 

(Conservation area).  We have no objection to this work going ahead. The trees are 
across the road from Trematon Castle. The trees scheduled for removal are diseased, 
and the sycamores scheduled for height reduction only are healthy and worth 
preserving.  After the work, enough good trees will be left so it still feels like a wood, 
and they will fill out over time.  
 
Adrian White 
Saltash Voluntary Tree Warden 

 

Page 19



From: Cornwall Council Licensing  
Sent: 05 September 2022 14:41 
Subject: FW: PUBLIC CONSULTATION - Statement of Principles under Gambling 
Act 2005 
  
  
FAO Town and Parish Councils 
  
Cornwall Council as Licensing Authority, is responsible for licensing and regulation of 
local gambling and deals with a number of functions in relation to gambling activities 
including bingo, betting, adult gaming, family entertainment centres, gaming machines 
and lotteries. 
  
The Council is required to publish a Statement of Principles under the Gambling Act 
(referred to as the gambling ‘policy’) and this policy should be reviewed at every 3 
years.   
  
A revised policy has now been drafted and is attached for your information – this 
includes a number of minor amendments that take into account updated guidance from 
the Gambling Commission and some other changes which officers consider 
necessary.   
  
For ease of reference, the changes in the attached draft policy are shown in shaded 
italic text. 
  
If you wish to comment on the draft policy, please email licensing@cornwall.gov.uk by 
31 October 2022.   

Your comments will then be referred back to the Licensing Act Committee for 
consideration. 
  
Kind regards 
  
Julie Flower  
Senior Licensing (Policy) Officer  
Public Protection  
Cornwall Council 

  

  

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 8

mailto:licensing@cornwall.gov.uk


 

 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT REVISED 

Statement of Principles  

Gambling Act 2005 

Date  for consultation from 5 September 2022- 31 October 2022 

Public Protection  

 

Page 21



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  2 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Current Document Status 

Version 
 
2.1 

Approving body Cornwall Council 

Date  Date of formal approval  4 December 2018 

 
Responsible 
officer 

 
Julie Flower 
 

Review date 31 January 2022 

 
Location  

 
https://www.cornwall.gov.uk/media/4n2nrnu5/gambling-statement-of-principles-january-
2019-january-2022.doc 
 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

July 2018 1.0 Sarah Kent  First draft for consultation  

01 November 
2018 

2.0 Sarah Kent  
Amended version following 
consultation responses  

1 September 
2022 

2.1 Julie Flower 
Draft approved by Licensing Act 
Committee prior for consultation 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment Record 
 

Date Type of 
assessment 
conducted 

Stage/level 
completed 
(where 
applicable) 

Summary of 
actions 
taken 
decisions 
made 

Completed 
by 

Impact 
Assessment 
review date 

 
16 October 2018  

 
Initial  

 
Complete 

 
NFA 

 
Sarah Kent / 
Angie McGinn  
 

 
 

 
Corporate Quality Assessment Record  
 
Date                                                                         

 

 
Completed by   

 

 

 
 

Document retention  

Document retention period E.g. 5 years in hard and electronic copies.  

 

Page 22

https://www.cornwall.gov.uk/media/4n2nrnu5/gambling-statement-of-principles-january-2019-january-2022.doc
https://www.cornwall.gov.uk/media/4n2nrnu5/gambling-statement-of-principles-january-2019-january-2022.doc


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  3 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 
 

 
 
 

Index  
 

Introduction  5 - 6 

Purpose and aim of the policy 6 

Scope 6 - 10 

 
Policy Statement   11-40 

Policy Details 40 

Consultation and Engagement  41 

 
Performance and Risk Management    41 

Communicating the Policy  41  

Breaches and Non-Compliance  41-42 

Information and Training    43 

Evaluation and Review  44 

 
Further Information 44 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 23



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  4 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 
Appendices  

 

 

Appendix A  

Glossary / Definitions 

 

45-48  

Appendix B  

Map of Cornwall 

 

49 

Appendix C 

List of Consultees 

 

     50 

Appendix D  

List of Responsible Authorities 

 

51 – 52 

Appendix E 

Gaming Machines 

 

53 – 55 

Appendix F 

Delegations 

 

56 - 57 

 

Page 24



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  5 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1. Cornwall is the most south-westerly part of the country and covers an 
area of 1,376 square miles. It has a population of just over 553,000 
570,000  

 

1.2. Cornwall Council serves one of the largest and most geographically 
diverse council areas in the country, covering coastal, rural and urban 
spaces. A map of Cornwall is attached at Appendix B for 

information. 
 

1.3. Cornwall’s image has evolved from a rich history and culture of 
mining and maritime industries, the legacies of which can still be 
seen across the area.  Today the economy depends heavily on its 
agricultural and tourist industry.  Tourism makes up around a quarter 

of the Cornish economy. 
 

1.4. Cornwall Council is designated under the Gambling Act 2005 as ‘the 
Licensing Authority’ for Cornwall and has a number of important 
regulatory functions in relation to gambling.  These include licensing 

premises, regulating gaming and gaming machines in clubs, granting 
permits to family entertainment centres for the use of certain lower 
stake gaming machines, regulating gaming and gaming machines on 

alcohol licensed premises, granting permits for prize gaming, 
registering small society lotteries, and tracks. 

 

1.5. The Council is required by the Act to publish a statement of principles 
that it proposes to apply when exercising its functions under the Act.  
This statement must be reviewed at least every three years.  The 

statement must also be reviewed from “time to time” and any 
amended parts re-consulted upon.  The statement must be re-

published after each review.  
 

1.6. The Council has, in accordance with the Act and the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance for local authorities, prepared, published and 

reviewed this ‘Statement of Principles’ (Gambling Policy) that sets out 
the policies that it will generally apply to promote the ‘licensing 

objectives’ as laid down in the Act. 
 

1.7. The Act requires that the following people and bodies be consulted in 

the preparation or revision of the statement: - 
 

 The Chief Officer of Police; 

 One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the 
interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the 

Authority’s area; 
 One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the 

interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise 

of the Authority’s functions under the Act. 
 

Page 25



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  6 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

1.8. The Council consulted widely upon this statement.  A list of those 
consulted is included as Appendix C. 

 

1.9. This ‘Statement of Principles’ (Gambling Policy) is published on the 
Cornwall Council website at www.cornwall.gov.uk. Copies are also 
available to view at any of the main council offices by prior 

appointment.  

2. Purpose and aim of the policy  
 

2.1 The policy is intended to set out clear and concise guidance, 
procedure and principles for the benefit of the Licensing Authority, 

the community, applicants and other relevant organisations.  
 
2.2 This policy statement does not override the right of any person to 

make an application, make representations about an application, or 
apply for a review of a licence, as each will be considered on its own 

merits and according to the statutory requirements of the Act.   
 
In producing the final statement, the Licensing Authority had regard 

to the licensing objectives of the Act, the guidance and codes of 
practice issued by the Gambling Commission and any responses from 

those consulted on the statement.  The full list of comments made 
and the consideration of responses given will be made available by 
contacting Cornwall Council. 

 
3. Scope  

 The Licensing Objectives  
 
3.1 In exercising most of its functions under the Act, the Licensing 

Authority shall have regard to the licensing objectives set out in 
section 1 of the Act.  In particular, the Licensing Authority shall have 

regard to the licensing objectives when exercising its functions in 
relation to premises licences, temporary use notices and some 
permits.  The licensing objectives are: - 

 
 preventing gambling from being a source of crime or 

disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being 
used to support crime; 

 
 ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open 

way; and 

 
 protecting children and other vulnerable persons from 

being harmed or exploited by gambling. 
 
 

The Council’s approach is to work with and support local businesses 
whilst balancing risks and concerns in relation to the potential risks to 

the licensing objectives. 
 

Page 26

http://www.cornwall.gov.uk/


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  7 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Public Health and Gambling  
 

3.2 The Licensing Authority agrees with the Gambling Commission’s view 
that gambling-related harm should be considered as a public health 
issue.  

 
Gambling is a legitimate leisure activity enjoyed by many and the 

majority of those who gamble appear to do so with enjoyment, and 
without exhibiting any signs of problematic behaviour. There are 
however some people who do experience harm as result of their 

gambling.   
 

Gambling related harm is defined as any type of repetitive gambling 
that disrupts or damages a person, family, or recreational pursuits.  

It can impact on an individual’s physical and mental health, 
relationships, housing and finances and affect a wide range of people, 
such as families, colleagues and wider local communities (for 

example, where problem gambling is associated with crime or 
homelessness) and society as a whole (in terms of costs that may be 

created by problem gambling). 
 
Evidence suggests that certain groups are more vulnerable to 

problem gambling including children and young people, people with 
mental health issues, certain minority ethnic groups, the 

unemployed, homeless people, those with low intellectual functioning, 
people with financially constrained circumstances and those living in 
deprived areas.  Harms may include financial hardship, relationship 

breakdown, domestic violence, mental health problems and suicidal 
thoughts. 

 
Gambling Operators must comply with the Gambling Commission’s  
Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice which includes Social 

Responsibility Codes which requires operators to have and put into 
effect policies and procedures to promote socially responsible 

gambling, which should reduce the risk of, and seek to identify 
problem gambling. 

 

For these problem gamblers, harm can include higher levels of 
physical and mental illness, debt problems, relationship breakdown 

and, in some cases, criminality. It can also be associated with 
substance misuse.  

 

There can also be considerable negative effects experienced by the 
wider group of people around a gambler. The health and wellbeing of 

partners, children, and friends can all be negatively affected.  
 

The Licensing Authority considers that Public Health teams, whilst not 

a responsible authority under the Act, can still assist the Licensing 
Authority to address gambling-related harm in its area.  

 
The Licensing Authority would therefore like to engage with the local 

Public Health team in the future development of this Statement of 

Page 27

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  8 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Principles and any Local Area Profile. acknowledges the Gambling 
Commission’s National Strategy to Reduce Gambling Harms and will  

continue engaging with public health and other partners to reduce 
gambling harms. 

 

Decision Making  
 

3.3 The Licensing Authority is aware that, under section 153 of the Act, 
when making decisions about premises licences and temporary use 
notices it must aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so 

far as it thinks it is:- 
 

a. in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission, these codes can be found at: 

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-
businesses/Compliance/LCCP/Licence-conditions-and-codes-of-
practice.aspx; 

b. in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission; 

c. reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to 
a and b); and 

d. in accordance with the Authority’s statement of principles. 

 
Responsible Authorities 

 
3.4 Responsible authorities are public bodies that must be notified of 

applications and that are entitled to make representations to the 

Licensing Authority in relation to applications for, and in relation to, 
premises licences.  Section 157 of the Act identifies the bodies that 

are to be treated as responsible authorities.  
 
3.5 Contact details of all responsible authorities under the Act have been 

attached at Appendix D.  These contact details are available on the 
Cornwall Council website together with information on how to make 

applications for licences and other permissions.   
 
3.6 The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the 

principles which it will apply in exercising its powers under Section 
157(h) of the Act to designate a body which is competent to advise 

the Authority about the protection of children from harm.  The 
principles are:- 

 

 the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the 
whole of the Licensing Authority’s area; and 

 the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected 
persons, rather than any particular vested interest group. 

 

3.7 In accordance with the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local 
authorities, the Licensing Authority designates the Safeguarding 

Children Partnership for this purpose.  The Licensing Authority may at 
any time, if necessary, designate another body for this purpose and 

Page 28

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-businesses/Compliance/LCCP/Licence-conditions-and-codes-of-practice.aspx
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-businesses/Compliance/LCCP/Licence-conditions-and-codes-of-practice.aspx
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-businesses/Compliance/LCCP/Licence-conditions-and-codes-of-practice.aspx


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  9 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

as such will do so and amend this policy accordingly without further 
consultation.   

 
3.8 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that the Secretary of State 

may prescribe other responsible authorities by means of regulations. 

 
Interested parties 

 
3.9 Interested parties may make representations about premises licence 

applications, or apply for a review of an existing premises licence.  

These parties are defined in the Act as follows:- 
 

“For the purpose of this part a person is an interested party in 
relation to an application for or in respect of a premises licence if, in 

the opinion of the Licensing Authority which issues the licence or to 
which the application is made, the person: - 
 

a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected 
by the authorised activities, 

b) has business interests that might be affected by the authorised 
activities, or 

c) represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b)”. 

 
3.10 These factors, along with any other relevant considerations together 

with the principles indicated below, will be taken into account by the 
Licensing Authority in determining whether a person can be regarded 
as an interested party.  Other relevant considerations may include for 

example, the size of the premises and the nature of the activities 
taking place but of course these examples are illustrative and not 

exhaustive. 
 

3.11 The principles which the Licensing Authority will apply, in accordance 

with regulations, in exercising its powers under the Act to determine 
whether a person is an interested party are: -    

 

a) Each case will be decided upon its own merits.  The Licensing 

Authority will not apply an inflexible approach to its decision-
making and will have regard to Gambling Commission’s 

guidance in relation to matters to be considered.  It will also 
consider that "has business interests" should be given the 
widest possible interpretation and include partnerships, 

charities, faith groups and medical practices. 
 

b) The Licensing Authority will view trade associations, trade 
unions and residents’ and tenants’ associations as interested 

parties provided they have member(s) who can be classed as an 
interested party(ies) under the terms of the Act, i.e. lives 

sufficiently close to the premises or has business interests likely 
to be affected by the authorised activities; or is acting as a 
representative on behalf of an individual / business likely to be 

affected.  A letter from the interested party requesting the 
representation will be required.  

Page 29



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  10 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 

c) Interested parties can be persons who are democratically 

elected such as councillors and MPs.  The Licensing Authority will 
normally expect written evidence that a person/body (e.g. an 

advocate / relative) ‘represents’ someone who either lives 
sufficiently close to the premises likely to be affected by the 

authorised activities and/or has business interests that might be 
affected by the authorised activities.  A letter from the 
interested party requesting the representation will usually be 

sufficient. 
 

3.12 If individuals wish to approach a Councillor of the Licensing Authority 
to ask them to represent their views, then those councillors will not 
be part of the Licensing Committee convened to determine the 

licence application.  If there are any doubts or concerns, the 
Licensing Officer should be contacted for further advice. 

 
3.13 Representations in respect of applications for new premises or 

applications for reviews should be based on the licensing objectives 
of the Act, relevant guidance and codes of practice. 

 

Licensing Authority Functions 
 

3.14 Licensing Authorities are required under the Act to: 
 

 Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling 

activities are to take place by issuing Premises Licences;  
 Issue Provisional Statements;  

 Regulate members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who wish 
to undertake certain gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming 
Permits and/or Club Machine Permits;  

 Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs;  
 Grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines 

at unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres;  
 Receive notifications from premises licensed under the Licensing 

Act 2003 for the sale of alcohol for unconditional consumption on 

the premises for the use of one or two gaming machines (Category 
C or D);  

 Issue Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises 
licensed to sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed 
premises, under the Licensing Act 2003, where there are more 

than two machines;  
 Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds;  

 Issue Prize Gaming Permits;  
 Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices;  
 Receive Occasional Use Notices;  

 Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details 
of applications received and licences issued or refused (see section 

above on ‘information exchange); and 
 Maintain registers of the permits and licences issued or refused 

under these functions. 

 

Page 30



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  11 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

3.15 Licensable activities are described in the Glossary in Appendix A.   
 

The Gambling Commission  
 

3.16 The Gambling Commission regulates remote gambling and issues 

Personal and Operator licences for premises. The “National Lottery” is 
also regulated by the Gambling Commission. 

 
The Gambling Commission regulates gambling in the public interest. 
It does so by keeping crime out of gambling; by ensuring that 

gambling is conducted fairly and openly; and by protecting children 
and vulnerable people. 

 
The Commission provides independent advice to the Government 

about the manner in which gambling is carried out, the effects of 
gambling, and the regulation of gambling generally. It also produces 
guidance under Section 25 of the Act detailing how local authorities 

should exercise their licensing functions. 
 

In addition, the Commission’s role is to issue codes of practice under 
Section 24 of the Act about the manner in which facilities for 
gambling are provided, and how those provisions might be 

advertised. 
 

Information about the Gambling Commission can be found at 
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk 
 

4. Policy statement  

 

PREMISES LICENCES 

 
4.1 Premises licences will be subject to the requirements set out in the 

Act and its regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default 

conditions which are detailed in regulations issued by the Secretary 
of State.  The Licensing Authority will be able to exclude default 

conditions and also attach others, where it is believed to be 
reasonable and proportionate. The mandatory and default conditions 
can be found at 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/1409/contents/made.  
 

An application for a premises licence may only be made by persons 
(which includes companies or partnerships): 

 who are aged 18 or over and 

 who have the right to occupy the premises and 
 who have an operating licence which allows them to carry out 

the proposed activity. Details of operators that hold an 
operating licence are available on the Gambling Commission’s 
website or 

 who have applied for an operating licence to allow them to 
carry out the proposed activity. A premises licence cannot be 

Page 31

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/1409/contents/made


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  12 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

determined until an operating licence has been issued by the 
Gambling Commission. 

 
4.1 The Licensing Authority, in making decisions about premises licences, 

will aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it 

thinks it is:- 
 

 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission; 
 

 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission; 

 
 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 

 
 in accordance with the Authority’s statement of principles. 

  

4.2 The Licensing Authority notes the Gambling Commission’s Guidance 
for local authorities that “Licensing authorities should be aware that 

other considerations such as moral or ethical objections to gambling 
are not a valid reason to reject applications for premises licences. 
This is because such objections do not relate to the licensing 

objectives. An authority’s decision cannot be based on dislike of 
gambling, or a general notion that it is undesirable to allow gambling 

premises in an area (with the exception of the casino resolution 
powers)”. 

 

4.4     Previous legislation required that the grant of certain gambling   
          permissions should take account of whether there is unfulfilled  

 demand for the facilities. The Gambling Commission has stated that 
“absence of unmet demand is not a criterion for a licensing authority 
in considering an application for a premises licence under the 

Gambling Act. Each application must be considered on its merits 
without regard to demand. 

 
Gambling Activity  
 

4.5 By distinguishing between premises types the Act makes it clear that 
         the gambling activity of a premises should include that described by     

         the premises licence. 
  
        The Licensing Authority will have regard to the relevant Statutory      

        Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission for each specific type of  
        gambling premises.   

 
Definition of “premises” 
 

4.6 A premises is defined in the Act as “any place”.  Different premises 
licences cannot apply in respect of single premises at different times.  

However, it is possible for a single building to be subject to more 
than one premises licence, provided they are for different parts of the 

building and the different parts of the building can be reasonably 

Page 32



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  13 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

regarded as being different premises.  This approach has been taken 
to allow large, multiple unit premises such as pleasure parks, tracks 

and shopping malls to obtain discrete premises licence where 
appropriate safeguards are in place. Whether different parts of a 
building can properly be regarded as being separate premises will 

depend on the circumstance. However, the Gambling Commission 
considers that areas of a building that are artificially or temporarily 

separated for example by way of ropes or moveable partitions cannot 
be properly regarded as different premises.   

 

Division of premises and access between premises  
 

4.7.   There can be no access from one licensed gambling premises to 
         another, except between premises which allow access to those under 

         the age of 18 and with the further exception that licensed betting 
         premises may be accessed from other licensed betting premises. 
         Under-18s can go into family entertainment centres, tracks, pubs and  

         some bingo clubs. So access is allowed between these types of 
         premises.  

 
4.8 Where a premises are part of the same building / within the same 

building there should be an area separating the areas concerned 

which the public visit for the purposes other than Gambling. This will 
ensure no direct access.   

 
4.9 There is no definition of “direct access” in the Act or regulations. 

However, the Statutory Guidance states, it could be said that there 

should be an area separating the premises concerned (for example a 
street or café), which the public go to for purposes other than 

gambling, for there to be shown to be no direct access.   
 
4.10 The relevant access provisions for each premises type is as follows:  

 
Casinos  

     the principal entrance to the premises must be from a street  

   (please  refer to the definition in Appendix A for “street”)  

 no entrance to a casino must be from premises that are used 

    wholly or mainly by children and/or young persons  

 no customer must be able to enter a casino directly from any other     
    premises which holds a gambling premises licence.  

 

Adult gaming centres  
 no customer must be able to access the premises directly from 

any other licensed gambling premises or premises with a Permit 
under the Gambling Act. 

 

Betting shops  
 access must be from a street (please refer to the definition in 

Appendix A for “street”) or from other premises with a betting 
premises licence, no direct access from a betting shop to another 
premises used for the retail sale of merchandise or services. In 

effect there cannot be an entrance to a betting shop from a shop 

Page 33



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  14 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

of any kind and you could not have a betting shop at the back of a 
cafe – the whole area would have to be licensed. 

 

Tracks  

 no customer should be able to access the premises directly 

from:  
 a casino  

 an adult gaming centre.  

 
Bingo premises  

 no customer must be able to access the premises directly 
from:  

 a casino  

 an adult gaming centre  

 a betting premises, other than a track.  
 

Family entertainment centres  
 no customer must be able to access the premises directly 

from:  

 a casino  

 an adult gaming centre  

 a betting premises, other than a track.  

 
4.11 The Licensing Authority takes particular note of the Gambling   

Commission’s Guidance for local authorities which states that 

licensing authorities should:- 
 

 take particular care in considering applications for multiple 
premises licences for a building and those relating to a 
discrete part of a building used for other (non-gambling) 

purposes.  Entrances and exits from parts of a building 
covered by one or more licences should be separate and 

identifiable so that the separation of different premises is not 
compromised and that people do not ‘drift’ into a gambling 
area.  

 
4.12 When determining an application the Licensing Authority, in order to 

satisfy themselves that there is separation between premises and 
that the access between premises is acceptable, will have regard to 
the plan submitted with the application, the ability for the premises 

to comply with the mandatory conditions, the Act, Gambling 
Commission guidance and codes of practice.  

 
The Licensing Authority will raise a representation against an 
application and may request a review of a premises licence should 

they feel that the separation and access to the premises could or is 
undermining one or more of the licensing objectives.  

 
4.13 It is noted that some operators may submit an application for the 

grant of a premises licence rather than applying for a provisional 

statement. This means that the premises are likely to be under 

Page 34



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  15 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

construction and therefore not ready for use. In these circumstances 
the Licensing Authority will have due regard to the relevant sections 

of the statutory guidance issued by the Gambling Commission when 
determining the application. 

 

Location 
 

4.14   The Licensing Authority will not consider ‘demand’ issues 
with regard to the location of premises.  The Licensing Authority will 
however, consider the licensing objectives and associated relevant 

considerations and will pay particular attention to the protection of 
children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 

gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder.  Associated 
relevant considerations could include such factors as the proximity of 

gambling premises to schools and vulnerable adult centres or to 
residential estates with a high number of children but will be a matter 
of determination in each case.   

 
Duplication with other regulatory regimes  

 
4.15 The Licensing Authority will seek to avoid any duplication with other 

statutory / regulatory systems where possible, including planning.  

The Licensing Authority will not normally consider whether a licence 
application is likely to be awarded planning permission or building 

regulations approval.  It will however, listen to, and consider carefully 
and appropriately, any concerns about conditions which are not able 
to be met by the licensee due to planning restrictions, should such a 

situation arise. 
 

Licensing objectives  
 
4.16 Any premises licences granted shall be reasonably consistent with the 

         licensing objectives, subject to any relevant code of practice or 
         guidance issued by the Gambling Commission.  

 
4.17  Licensing Objective: ‘Preventing gambling from being a source 

of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder 

or being used to support crime’  
 

 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that the Gambling Commission 
will be taking a leading role in preventing gambling from being a 
source of crime.  It also acknowledges the Gambling Commission’s 

guidance which states, “Licensing Authorities will need to consider 
the location of premises in the context of this licensing objective.  If 

an application for a licence or permit is received in relation to 
premises that are in an area noted for particular problems with 
organised crime, for example, licensing authorities should think about 

what (if any) controls might be appropriate to prevent those premises 
becoming a source of crime.  These might include conditions being 

put on the licence, such as a requirement for door supervisors”.  The 
Licensing Authority notes the Gambling Commission’s guidance in 

relation to disorder and nuisance and that in the case of gambling 

Page 35



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  16 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

premises licences, disorder is intended to mean activity that is more 
serious and disruptive than mere nuisance.  When determining 

whether a disturbance is serious enough to constitute disorder, the 
Licensing Authority will consider factors such as whether police 
assistance was required and how threatening the behaviour was to 

those who could see it or hear it. 
 

4.18 Licensing Objective: ‘Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a 
fair and open way’  

  

The Licensing Authority will not normally (except with regard to 
tracks i.e. where there is no operating licence) become concerned 

with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as 
this will be addressed via operating and personal licences issued by 

the Gambling Commission. 
 
4.19 Licensing Objective: ‘Protecting children and other vulnerable 

persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling’  
 

The Licensing Authority acknowledges the Gambling Commission's 
guidance that this objective means preventing children from taking 
part in gambling (as well as restriction of advertising so that 

gambling products are not aimed at or are particularly attractive to 
children).  The Licensing Authority will therefore consider whether 

specific measures are required at particular premises, with regard to 
this licensing objective.  Appropriate measures may include 
supervision of entrances/machines, segregation of areas etc.  

 
4.20 The Licensing Authority will take into account any Codes of Practice 

         issued by the Gambling Commission regarding the licensing 
         objectives particularly in relation to specific premises.   
 

4.21 As regards the term “vulnerable persons” the Gambling Commission 
does not offer a definition but states that “it will for regulatory 

purposes assume that this group includes people who gamble more 
than they want to; people who gamble beyond their means; and 
people who may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions 

about gambling due to mental health needs, learning disability or 
substance misuse relating to alcohol or drugs.”  The Licensing 

Authority will consider this licensing objective on a case-by-case 
basis.  Should a more exhaustive practical definition emerge in future 
then this policy statement will be reviewed in the light of that 

definition. The Licensing Authority would recommend that Operators 
have a specific training programme in place to ensure that staff are 

able to identify children and other vulnerable persons.  
 

Local Area Profile 

 
4.22 At the time of writing this statement of principles and following 

consultation with Responsible Authorities and other parties there does 
not appear to be any significant concerns relating to gambling 

premises generally within Cornwall.  

Page 36



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  17 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 
Having said that, the Council appreciates that there is a high density 

of Gambling premises within tourist areas within Cornwall and the 
influx of tourists to Cornwall during the summer months increases the 
use of the premises.  

 
In addition, unlike other regulated areas, such as alcohol, gambling is 

much less visible as a concern for residents.  The problem gambler or 
the under 18 who gambles is not likely to contact the licensing 
authority to complain and therefore proactive inspection and 

enforcement is necessary to ensure the necessary protections, 
especially for the young and vulnerable, are in place and working 

effectively. 
 

Conditions 
 
4.23 Mandatory and default conditions are often sufficient to ensure an 

application is reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives. 
Any conditions attached to premises licences by the Licensing 

Authority, will be proportionate to the circumstances which are 
sought to be addressed.  Conditions shall be:- 

 relevant to the need to make the proposed premises suitable 

as a gambling facility; 
 directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied 

for; 
 fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of 

premises; and 

 reasonable in all other respects.  
 

4.24 Certain matters are set out in the Act and may not be the subject of 
conditions.  These are: 

 

 conditions which make it impossible to comply with an 
operating licence; 

 conditions as to gaming machines that contradict the 
provisions in the Act; 

 conditions making activities, premises or parts of them 

operate as a membership club; and 
 conditions on fees, winnings, stakes or prizes. 

 
4.25 Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case-by-case 

basis, although there will be a number of measures that the Licensing 

Authority will consider utilising should there be a perceived need, 
such as the use of supervisors, appropriate signage for adult only 

areas etc.  There are specific comments made in this regard under 
some of the licence types in this policy.  The Licensing Authority will 
also expect licence applicants to offer their own suggestions as to the 

way in which the licensing objectives can be met effectively. 
 

4.26 The Licensing Authority, in accordance with the Gambling 
Commission’s guidance, will consider specific measures which may be 

required for buildings which are subject to multiple premises licences.  

Page 37



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  18 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Such measures may include the supervision of entrances; 
segregation of gambling from non-gambling areas frequented by 

children; and the supervision of gaming machines in non-adult 
gambling specific premises in order to pursue the licensing 
objectives. 

 
4.27 The Licensing Authority expects that where category C (see 

Appendix E) or above machines are on offer in premises to which 
children are admitted that (including buildings where multiple 
premises licences are applicable):- 

 
 all such machines are located in an area of the premises which 

is separated from the remainder of the premises by a physical 
barrier which is effective to prevent access other than through 

a designated entrance; 
 only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are 

located; 

 access to the area where the machines are located is 
supervised; 

 the area where these machines are located is arranged so that 
it can be observed by the staff or the licence holder; and 

 at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are 

prominently displayed notices indicating that access to the 
area is prohibited to persons under 18. 

 
Door Supervisors  
 

4.28   The Licensing Authority, in accordance with the Gambling   
Commission’s guidance, will consider whether there is a need for door 

supervisors in terms of the licensing objectives; the protection of 
children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling; and preventing premises becoming a source of crime.  

 
4.29   The Licensing Authority acknowledges that in the case of casinos or 

          bingo premises (but not betting shops), any contract staff employed 
          as door supervisors (carrying-out functions set-out in Schedule 2 
          Part 1 of the Private Security Industry Act 2001), must be licensed 

          by the Security Industry Authority (SIA).  In-house staff carrying-out 
          the aforementioned functions in casinos and bingo premises, are  

          exempt from this requirement under the 2001 Act and therefore are 
          not required to be licensed by the SIA.   
 

4.30   For casinos or bingo premises where in-house staff employed as door 
         supervisors may come into contact with children or vulnerable 

persons, the Licensing Authority expects them to be subject to a 
Police National Database (PND) check or a Disclosure and Barring 
Service disclosure certificate upon employment and every 3 years 

thereafter and / or registration with the Independent Safeguarding 
Authority , as appropriate.  

 
This is to ensure that they are fit and proper persons to work in such 

a capacity.  Staff employed as door supervisors should have 

Page 38



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  19 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

undertaken appropriate training such as BIIAB National Certificate for 
Door Supervisors.  This is in recognition of the nature of the work in 

terms of searching individuals and dealing with potentially aggressive 
persons. 

 

4.31   For premises other than casinos and bingo premises, the operator 
and the Licensing Authority may decide that supervision of entrances 

/ machines is appropriate but it will need to be decided whether these 
door supervisors need to be SIA licensed or not.  It will not be 
automatically assumed that they need to be. 

 
Adult Gaming Centres 

 
4.32   The Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need to     

         protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited     
         by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority that 
         there will be sufficient measures to, for example, ensure that under   

18 year olds do not have access to the premises.   
 

4.33  The Licensing Authority may consider measures to meet the licensing      
         objectives such as:- 
 

 Proof of age schemes 
 CCTV 

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas 
 Physical separation of areas 
 Location of entry 

 Notices / signage 
 Self-exclusion schemes in accordance with the Social 

Responsibility Code  
 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for 

organisations such as GamCare.  For more information go to 

www.GamCare.org.uk  
 

The above list is neither mandatory, nor exhaustive and is merely 
indicative of example measures. 
 

(Licensed Family)  Entertainment Centres (LFECs): 
 

4.34  The Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need to       
protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited 
by gambling and will expect applicants to satisfy the authority, for 

example, that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 
18 year olds do not have access to ‘adult only’ gaming machine 

areas.   
 

4.35   The Licensing Authority may consider measures to meet the licensing 

         objectives such as:- 
 

 CCTV 
 Supervision of entrances / machine areas 

 Physical separation of areas 

Page 39

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/condition/3-5-6-multi-operator-non-remote-sr-code
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/condition/3-5-6-multi-operator-non-remote-sr-code
http://www.gamcare.org.uk/


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  20 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 Location of entry 
 Notices / signage 

 Self-exclusion schemes  
 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for 

organisations such as GamCare. 

 Measures / training for staff on how to deal with suspected 
truant school children on the premises 

 
The above list is neither mandatory, nor exhaustive and is merely 
indicative of example measures. 

 
4.36  The Licensing Authority will have regard to any guidance issued by   

the Gambling Commission, in relation to any conditions that apply to 
operating licences covering the way in which the area containing the 

category C machines should be delineated.  The Licensing Authority 
will also have regard to any mandatory or default conditions issued 
by the Secretary of State applicable to this type of premises licence.   

 
Casinos 

 
4.37  No casinos resolution’ – the Licensing Authority has not passed a     
        ‘no casino’ resolution under Section 166 of the Gambling Act 2005, but   

         is aware that it has the power to do so.  Should the Licensing   
         Authority decide in the future to pass such a resolution, it will update 

         this policy statement with details of that resolution.  The decision to   
         pass such a resolution may only be taken by the authority as a whole 
         and cannot be delegated to the Licensing Committee. 

 
4.38   Casinos and competitive bidding – where a Licensing Authority 

          area is enabled to grant a premises licence for a new style casino 
          (the Secretary of State has made such regulations under Section 175 
          of the Act) there are likely to be a number of operators who will want 

          to run the casino.  In such situations the Licensing Authority will run 
          a ‘competition’ under Schedule 9 of the Act and in line with any 

          regulations / codes of practice issued under the Act. 
 
4.39   Licence considerations / conditions – The Licensing Authority will 

have regard to any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission in 
relation to casinos. 

 
Bingo 
 

4.40   The Licensing Authority expects that, where children are allowed to 
enter premises licensed for bingo, they do not participate in gambling 

other than on category D machines.   
Where category C or above machines are available in premises to 
which children are admitted the Licensing Authority expects that: - 

 
 all such machines will be located in an area of the premises 

separated from the remainder of the premises by a physical 
barrier which is effective to prevent access other than through 

a designated entrance; 

Page 40



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  21 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 only adults will be admitted to the area where the machines 
are located; 

 access to the area where the machines are located is 
supervised; 

 the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it 

can be observed by staff of the operator or the licence holder; 
and 

 at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are 
prominently displayed notices indicating that access to the 
area is prohibited to persons under 18. 

 
4.41  The Licensing Authority will have regard to any guidance issued by   

         the Gambling Commission, in relation to the suitability and layout of  
         bingo premises.  

 
Betting Machines   
 

4.42  Betting machines – the Licensing Authority will, in accordance with 
the Gambling Commission's guidance, take into account the size of 

the premises, the number of counter positions available for person-
to-person transactions and the ability of staff to prevent the use of 
the machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for 

those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants 

to offer. 
 
Betting Premises  

 
4.43 The licence conditions and codes of practice relevant to betting 

premises requires that gaming machines may be made available for 
use in licensed betting premises only where there are also 
substantive facilities for non-remote betting available in the 

premises.  
 

Tracks “including other sporting venues” 
 
4.44 Tracks under the Act include premises where a race or other sporting 

        event takes place or is intended to take place.  Tracks may be subject   
        to more than one premises licence provided each licence relates to a   

        specified area of the track.  The Licensing Authority will consider the  
        impact upon the third licensing objective (i.e. the protection of  
        children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by   

        gambling) and expects that entrances to each type of premises are   
        distinct and that children are excluded from gambling areas where      

        they are not permitted to enter. 
 
4.45   The Licensing Authority expects premises licence applicants to 

demonstrate suitable measures to ensure that children do not have 
access to adult only gaming facilities, for example, where children 

and young persons are permitted to enter track areas where facilities 
for betting are provided on days when dog-racing and/or horse racing 

Page 41



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  22 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

takes place, they must be prevented from entering areas where 
gaming machines (other than category D machines) are provided. 

 
4.46   The Licensing Authority may consider measures to meet the licensing 
          objectives such as:- 

 
 Proof of age schemes 

 CCTV 
 Supervision of entrances / machine areas 
 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 
 Notices / signage 

 Self-exclusion schemes 
 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for 

organisations such as GamCare 
 
The above list is neither mandatory nor exhaustive, and is merely 

indicative of example measures. 
 

Gaming Machines  
 
4.47   The Licensing Authority will consider the location of gaming machines  

at tracks and expects applicants for track premises licences to 
demonstrate, (where the applicant holds a pool betting operating 

licence and is going to use his entitlement to four gaming machines), 
that these machines are located in areas from which children are 
excluded.  Children and young persons, however, will not be 

prohibited from playing category D gaming machines on a track.  The 
Licensing Authority will have regard to any further guidance issued by 

the Gambling Commission. 
 
Condition on rules being displayed  

 
4.48  The Licensing Authority, in accordance with the Gambling  

Commission’s guidance, will attach a condition to track premises 
licences requiring the track operator to ensure that the rules are 
prominently displayed in or near the betting areas, or that other 

measures are taken to ensure that they are made available to the 
public.  For example, the rules are to be printed in the race card, or 

made available in leaflet form from the track office. 
 

Applications and Plans  

 
4.49   The Licensing Authority expects applicants to submit a detailed  

plan(s) (as part of the whole application) of the racetrack itself and 
the area that will be used for temporary “on-course” betting facilities 
(often known as the “betting ring”) and in the case of dog tracks and 

horse racecourses fixed and mobile pool betting facilities operated by 
the Tote or track operator, as well as any other proposed gambling 

facilities.  The plan(s) should make clear what is being sought for 
authorisation under the track betting premises licence and what, if 

Page 42



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  23 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

any, other areas are to be subject to a separate application for a 
different type of premises licence. 

 
Off Course Betting Premises on ‘Tracks’ 
 

4.50   The Licensing Authority, in accordance with the Gambling 
         Commission’s guidance, considers that it is generally preferable for all  

self-contained premises operated by off-course betting operators on 
track to be the subject of separate premises licences, to ensure that 
there is clarity between the respective responsibilities of the track 

operator and the off-course betting operator running a self-contained 
unit on the premises. 

 
Travelling Fairs 

 
4.51 The Licensing Authority will decide whether the statutory requirement 

for facilities for gambling amount to no more than an ancillary 

amusement at the fair is met where category D machines and/ or 
equal chance prize gaming (see Appendix E) without a permit are to 

be made available for use at travelling fairs. 
 
4.52 The Licensing Authority will consider whether the applicant falls 

within the statutory definition of a travelling fair (refer to Appendix 
A for definition). 

 
4.53 The 27-day statutory maximum for land being used as a fair is per 

calendar year, and applies to the piece of land on which fairs are 

held, regardless of whether it is the same or different travelling fairs 
occupying the land.  The Licensing Authority will work with 

neighbouring authorities to ensure that land which crosses authority 
boundaries is monitored so that the statutory limits are not 
exceeded. 

 
Provisional Statements 

 
4.54 Where a premises licence application follows the grant of a 

provisional statement, no further representations from relevant 

authorities or interested parties can be taken into account unless 
they concern matters which could not have been addressed at the 

provisional statement stage, or they reflect a change in the 
applicant’s circumstances.  In addition, the Licensing Authority may 
refuse the premises licence (or grant it on terms different to those 

attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to matters:- 
 

(i) which could not have been raised by objectors at the 
provisional licence stage;  

(ii) which in the authority’s opinion reflect a change in the 

operator’s circumstances;  
(iii) where the premises has not been constructed in accordance 

with the plan and information submitted with the provisional 
statement application.  This must be a substantial change to 

Page 43



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  24 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

the plan and Licensing Authorities should discuss any concerns 
they have with the applicant before making a decision. 

 
4.55 The Licensing Authority, in accordance with Gambling Commission’s 

guidance, will not take into account irrelevant matters.  An example 

of an irrelevant matter would be the likelihood of the applicant 
obtaining planning permission or building regulations approval for the 

proposal.  
 
Variations 

 
4.56 Should the authority receive an application to vary a premises licence 

for a bingo or betting premises in order to extend the opening hours, 
then in accordance with the Gambling Commission Guidance this 

authority will need to be satisfied that the reason for the application 
is in line with the requirements on the gambling activity (i.e. the 
need for operating licence holders to ensure that the gambling 

activity appropriate to the licence type is actually offered at those 
premises).   

 
Reviews 
 

4.57 Requests for a review of a premises licence can be made by  
interested parties or responsible authorities.  The Licensing Authority 

will decide whether the review is to be carried out and will be 
determined on the basis of whether the request for the review is 
relevant to the matters listed below; the request is frivolous, 

vexatious; and whether it is substantially the same as previous 
representations or requests for review.  These will certainly not cause 

this Licensing Authority to alter/revoke/suspend the licence. 
 
         Any requests for a review of a premises licence must be: - 

 
o in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the 

Gambling Commission; 
o in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the 

Gambling Commission; 

o reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 
o in accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing 

policy. 
 
4.58 The Licensing Authority may also initiate a review of a licence on the 

basis of any relevant reason that it thinks is appropriate. 
 

4.59 Once a valid application for a review has been received, 
representations can be made by responsible authorities and 
interested parties during the statutory consultation period.  

 
4.60 The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the Licensing 

Authority should take any action in relation to the licence. The 
options available are:  

 

Page 44



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  25 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 Add, remove or amend a licence condition;  

 Remove or amend a default condition, such as opening hours;  

 Suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding 3 
months;  

 Revoke the licence.  
 

Premises based Risk Assessments  
 

4.61 In accordance with the Social Responsibility code within the Gambling 
Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice, operators 
must assess the local risks to the licensing objectives posed by the 

provision of gambling facilities at their premises, and have policies, 
procedures and control measures in place to mitigate those risks. 

 
         Gambling operators were required to undertake a risk   
         assessment of or all existing premises by 6 April 2016. All new and  

         varied premises operators must also undertake a review of those    
         assessments when certain triggers are met.  

These triggers along with the Council’s view on what would instigate 
either a new assessment or the review of an existing one are detailed 
within Guidance on undertaking risk assessments guidance notes 

titled ‘Cornwall Council’s Guidance on Undertaking Local Gambling 
Risk Assessments’, this guidance includes a Specimen risk 
assessment for use should premises choose to use it. The guidance 

document is available on the Council’s website or upon request to 
your Local Licensing Office.  

4.62 Local risk factors are risks that affect one or more of the licensing  

objectives. Should risks be identified upon completion of a risk 
assessment the local authority will expect operators to implement 
any measures identified to mitigate any risks.  

 
Conditions may be identified that are considered appropriate in 

addition to the mandatory and default conditions, however each case 
will be considered on its own merits and evidence must be produced 
that supports additional conditions that premises are not already 

subject to. 
 

The Licensing Authority expects a copy of the most recent local risk 
assessment to be kept on each premises that is subject to a premises 
licence under the Gambling Act 2005. 

 
The risk assessment must be shared with the Licensing Authority 

when applying for a new or variation of premises licence or at the 
request of the Licensing Authority. 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 45

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp
https://www.cornwall.gov.uk/media/20wakxqp/guidance-on-undertaking-local-gambling-risk-assessments-2016.doc
https://www.cornwall.gov.uk/media/p0ehbtrp/specimen-risk-assessment-ga05-premises.docx
https://www.cornwall.gov.uk/media/p0ehbtrp/specimen-risk-assessment-ga05-premises.docx


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  26 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Permits / Temporary & Occasional Use Notice 
 

Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre (uFEC) gaming machine 
permits  
 

4.63 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres will be able to offer only 
category D machines (refer to Appendix E) in reliance on a gaming 

machine permit. Any number of category D machines can be made 
available with such a permit.   

 

4.64 If the operator of a family entertainment centre wishes to make 
category C machines available in addition to category D machines, 

the operator will need to apply for an operating licence from the 
Gambling Commission and a premises licence from the Licensing 

Authority.  The Council recommends that operators consider 
observing the BACTA Voluntary Code of Practice which can be found 
at www.bacta.org.uk. These are BACTA’s current codes on social 

responsibility for the gaming machine sector.  
 

4.65 Permits cannot be issued in respect of Vessels or Vehicles.  
 
4.66 Applicants when applying for a permit must show that the premises 

will be wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available 
for use. The permit cannot therefore be granted for an entire 

shopping centre, airport or bowling alley, for example.  Typically, the 
machines would be in a designated, enclosed area. 
 

4.67 The application for a permit can only be made by a person who 
occupies or plans to occupy the premises to be used as an uFEC and, 

if the applicant is an individual, he or she must be aged 18 or over. 
Applications for a permit cannot be made if a premises licence under 
the Gambling Act 2005 is in effect for the same premises. The 

application must be made to the licensing authority in whose area the 
premises are wholly or partly situated. 

 
4.68 The application must be submitted on the Licensing Authority’s 

standard form and be accompanied by the prescribed application fee. 

The Licensing Authority also requires the application to be 
accompanied by a plan of the premises that will be used as an uFEC, 

which shows the location of any gaming machines that will be 
provided if the permit were to be granted.  

 

4.69 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to show that there are 
policies and procedures in place to protect children and other 

vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.  The 
efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be considered on 
their merit; however, they may include appropriate measures / 

training for staff as regards to suspected truant school children on 
the premises, measures / training covering how staff would deal with 

unsupervised very young children being on the premises, or children 
causing perceived problems on / around the premises, etc.  

 

Page 46

http://www.bacta.org.uk/


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  27 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

4.70 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to demonstrate: - 
 

 that the applicant has no relevant convictions (those that are set 
out in Schedule 7 of the Act). In order to satisfy that the 
applicant has no relevant convictions a Basic Disclosure certificate 

issued by the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) within a 
period of one month before the application is made will be 

required to be submitted by the applicant. If the applicant is a 
company, a basic disclosure certificate will be required to be 
submitted by each of the Directors of the company  

 
 that staff are trained to have a full understanding of the 

maximum stakes and prizes 
 

4.71 An application for a permit may be granted only if the Licensing 
Authority is satisfied that the premises will be used as an uFEC, and if 
the chief officer of police has been consulted on the application. 

 
4.72 When considering an application, the Licensing Authority will consider 

the suitability of the applicant. Given that family entertainment 
centres are likely to appeal particularly to children and young 
persons, the Licensing Authority will give particular weight to matters 

relating to the protection of children from being harmed or exploited 
by gambling.  

 

4.73 When considering applications for a permit, in accordance with the 

Act, the Licensing Authority will have regard to any relevant guidance 
issued by the Gambling Commission; however it need not (but may) 
have regard to the licensing objectives. 

 

4.74 It should be noted that the Licensing Authority cannot attach 

conditions to this type of permit.  
 

4.74 The Licensing Authority may not refuse an application unless it has 
notified the applicant of the intention to refuse and the reasons for it, 
and given them an opportunity to make representations orally or in 

writing or both.  
 

4.75 The permit will have effect for ten years, unless it ceases to have 
effect because it is surrendered or lapses or is renewed. There is no 
annual fee for an uFEC gaming machine permit  

 
The permit may lapse for a number of reasons, namely:  

 
 if the holder ceases to occupy the premises  

 if the Licensing Authority notifies the holder that the premises 
are not being used as an uFEC  

 if an individual permit holder dies, becomes incapable by 
reason of mental or physical incapacity, becomes bankrupt, or 

sequestration of his estate is ordered  

 if the company holding the permit ceases to exist, or goes into 

liquidation.  

Page 47



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  28 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 
Renewal of a Permit  

 
4.76 An application for renewal of an uFEC gaming machine permit must 

be made during the period beginning six months before the permit 

expires and ending two months before it expires. The procedure for 
renewal is the same as for an application. Licensing Authority may 

only refuse to renew a permit on the grounds that:  
 

 an authorised local authority officer has been refused access to 
the premises without reasonable excuse  

 renewal would not be reasonably consistent with the licensing 
objectives. 

 
In this respect, the licensing authority will have the benefit of having 

consulted the chief officer of police and will be aware of any concerns 
that have arisen about the use of the premises during the life of the 
permit.  

 
4.77 The duration of the permit will not be curtailed while a renewal 

application is pending, including an appeal against a decision not to 
renew.  

 

Automatic entitlement to two gaming machines  
 

4.78 Premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises are 
automatically entitled to have two gaming machines (of category C or 
D) (see Appendix E).  The person who holds the on-premises alcohol 

licence must give notice to the Licensing Authority of their intention 
to make gaming machines available for use, and must pay the 

prescribed fee. 
 

4.79 This is not an authorisation procedure. The Licensing Authority has no 

discretion to consider the notification or to turn it down. The only 
matter to determine whether the person applying for the automatic 

gaming machine entitlement is the holder of the alcohol licence and 
whether the prescribed fee has been paid. There is no statutory 

requirements for premises to display a notice of their automatic 
entitlement to gaming machines.  

 

4.80 The Licensing Authority expects licence holders making machines 
available in accordance with their automatic entitlement to comply 

with the Gambling Commission’s code of practice for gaming 
machines in clubs and premises with an alcohol licence.  

  

4.81 The Licensing Authority can remove the automatic authorisation in 
respect of any particular premises, by making an order under section 

284 of the Act.  The Licensing Authority can make such an order if:- 
 

 provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the 

pursuit of the licensing objectives; 

Page 48



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  29 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a 
condition of section 282 of the Act (i.e. that written notice has 

been provided to the Licensing Authority, that a fee has been 
provided and that any relevant code of practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the 

machine has been complied with);  
 the premises are mainly used for gaming; or 

 an offence under the Act has been committed on the premises. 
 

Before making an order, the Licensing Authority will give the holder 

at least 21 days’ notice of the intention to make the order and will 
consider any representations that they may make. The Licensing 

Authority will hold a hearing if the holder requests and will comply 
with other procedural requirements set out in regulations. If there is 

no appeal, the order will take effect 21 days after the notice of 
intention was given. The Licensing Authority must give the holder a 
copy of the order and reasons for its decision. The holder may appeal 

to the Magistrates Court.  
 

(Alcohol)  Licensed premises gaming machine permits  
 
4.82 If a premises wishes to have more than two machines, then it needs 

to apply for a permit.  Such a permit can authorise the provision of 
any number of category C or D gaming machines within the relevant 

licensed premises. The Licensing Authority will consider that 
application based upon the licensing objectives and have regard to 
any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission and also such 

matters as they think relevant. In particular the Licensing Authority 
will have regard to the size and nature of the premises, the 

number of gaming machines requested and the ability of the 
licence holder to comply with the relevant code of practice.  
 

4.83 The Licensing Authority considers that “such matters” will be decided 
on a case-by-case basis but generally there will be regard to the need 

to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being 
exploited by gambling and will expect applicants to satisfy the 
authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that persons 

under 18 years do not have access to the adult only gaming 
machines.  

 
Measures which may satisfy the Authority that there will be no access 

may include the adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in the 
sight of staff, who will monitor that the machines are not being used 
by those under 18 years.  Notices and signage may also be of help.  

As regards the protection of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish 
to consider the provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers 

for organisations such as GamCare. 
 

4.84 The Licensing Authority may also require an applicant to submit a 

plan of the premises showing where the gaming machines are to be 
located and showing the position of the bar. 

 

Page 49



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  30 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

4.85 It is recognised that some alcohol-licensed premises may apply for a 
premises licence under the Act for their non-alcohol licensed areas.  

Any such application would most likely need to be applied for and 
dealt with as a premises licence under the Act but the individual 
circumstances are likely to need to be looked at in each case to 

assess the requirements of the Act. 
 

4.86 The application does not require notification to the Commission or 
police before determination. However, the Licensing Authority is able 
to specify this as a requirement should they see fit.  

 
4.87 The Licensing Authority may grant or refuse an application. In 

granting the application, it may vary the number and category of 
gaming machines authorised by the permit. If granted, the Licensing 

Authority will issue the permit as soon as possible after that. Where 
they refuse the application they will notify the applicant as soon as 
possible, setting out the reasons for refusal. The Licensing Authority 

will not refuse an application, or grant it for a different number or 
category of machines, unless they have notified the applicant of their 

intention to do so and given the applicant an opportunity to make 
representations, orally, in writing, or both.  

 

4.88 Holders of permits must comply with any Code of Practice issued by 
the Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the 

machine. 
 

4.89 The Licensing Authority is able to cancel a permit. It may only do so 

in specified circumstances which include if the premises are used 
wholly or mainly by children or young persons or if an offence under 

the Act has been committed. Before it cancels a permit the Licensing 
Authority will notify the holder, giving 21 days’ notice of intention to 
cancel, consider any representations made by the holder, hold a 

hearing if requested, and comply with any other prescribed 
requirements relating to the procedure to be followed. Where the 

Licensing Authority cancels the permit, the cancellation does not take 
effect until the period for appealing against that decision has elapsed 
or, where an appeal is made, until the appeal is determined.  

 
The Licensing Authority can also cancel a permit if the holder fails to 

pay the annual fee, unless failure is the result of an administrative 
error. The court may order forfeiture of the permit if the holder is 
convicted of a relevant offence. 

 
Exempt Gaming  

 
4.90 Exempt gaming is generally permissible in any club. Such gaming 

must be equal chance gaming and be ancillary to the purposes of the 

club. This provision is automatically available to all such premises, 
but is subject to statutory stakes and prize limits determined by the 

Secretary of State.  
 

Page 50



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  31 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Equal chance gaming is gaming that does not involve staking against 
a bank and the chances of winning are equally favourable to all 

participants. It includes games such as dominoes, cribbage, bingo 
and poker.  

 

The Secretary of State has set both daily and weekly prize limits for 
exempt gaming. Different higher stakes and prizes are allowed for 

exempt gaming in clubs than are allowed in alcohol-licensed premises 
and details of these can be found on the Gambling Commission’s 
website.  

 
4.91 Clubs may levy a charge for participation in equal chance gaming 

under the exempt gaming rules. The amount they may charge is as 
prescribed in regulations and the relevant details can be found on the 

Gambling Commission’s website. However in order to qualify as 
exempt gaming, clubs may not charge a rake on games (a 
commission or fee deducted from the prize fund), or levy or deduct 

an amount from stakes or winnings.  
 

4.92 The Licensing Authority expects exempt gaming in clubs to comply 
with the Gambling Commission’s code of practice on equal chance 
gaming in clubs and premises with an alcohol licence. 

 
Prize Gaming Permits 

 
4.93 Gaming is prize gaming if the nature and size of the prize is not 

determined by the number of people playing or the amount paid for 

or raised by the gaming. Normally the prizes are determined by the 
operator before play commences.  

 
A prize gaming permit is a permit issued by the Licensing Authority to 
authorise the provision of facilities for gaming with prizes on specified 

premises.  
 

4.94 An application for a permit can only be made by a person who 
occupies or plans to occupy the relevant premises and if the applicant 
is an individual, he must be aged 18 or over. An application for a 

permit cannot be made if a premises licence or club gaming permit is 
in effect for the same premises under the Gambling Act 2005. The 

application must be made to the Licensing Authority in whose area 
the premises are wholly or partly situated.  

 

4.95 When applying for a permit, the applicant should set out the types of 
gaming that they intend to offer and be able to demonstrate:-  

 
 that they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set 

out in Regulations;  

 and that the gaming offered is within the law 
 The Licensing Authority requires applicants for prize gaming 

permits to provide a Basic Disclosure certificate issued by the 
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) within a period of one 

month before the application is made. 

Page 51



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  32 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 
4.96 The application must be submitted on the standard form and be 

accompanied by the prescribed application fee. The Licensing 
Authority also requires the application to be accompanied by a plan of 
the premises that will be used for gaming with prizes.  

 
In considering an application, the licensing authority shall have 

regard to the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing 
Authorities and will also have regard to the licensing objectives.  

 

4.97  The Licensing Authority can grant or refuse an application for a 
permit, but cannot attach conditions; however there are mandatory 

conditions in the Act with which permit holders must comply.  They 
are:- 

 the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be 
complied with; 

 all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the 

premises on which the gaming is taking place and on one day; 
 the game must be played and completed on the day the chances 

are allocated; and the result of the game must be made public in 
the premises on the day that it is played;  

 the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the 

amount set out in regulations (if a money prize), or the 
prescribed value (if non-monetary prize); and 

 participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take 
part in any other gambling.  

 

The Licensing Authority will grant a prize gaming permit only if they 
have consulted the chief officer of police about the application. The 

Licensing Authority will take account of any objections that the police 
may wish to make which are relevant to the licensing objectives.  

 

Relevant considerations would include the suitability of the applicant 
in terms of any convictions that they may have that would make 

them unsuitable to operate prize gaming; and the suitability of the 
premises in relation to their location and any issues concerning 
disorder.  

 
A permit cannot be issued in respect of a vessel or a vehicle.  

 
The Licensing Authority will not refuse an application unless they 
have notified the applicant of the intention to refuse and the reasons 

for it, and given them an opportunity to make representations orally 
or in writing or both.  

 
If granted, the permit will have effect for ten years, unless it ceases 
to have effect, lapses or is renewed. There is no annual fee for prize 

gaming permits.  
 

The permit may lapse for a number of reasons:  
 

 if the holder ceases to occupy the premises  

Page 52



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  33 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 if an individual permit holder dies, becomes incapable by 
reason of mental or physical incapacity, becomes bankrupt, or 

sequestration of his estate is ordered  

 if a company holding the permit goes into liquidation  

 if the holder (for example a partnership) otherwise ceases to 

exist.  
 
4.98 An application for renewal of a permit must be made during the 

period beginning six months before the permit expires and ending 
two months before it expires. The procedure for renewal is the same 

as for an application.  
 

A permit will not cease to have effect while a renewal application is 

pending, including an appeal against a decision not to renew. 
 

Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 
 
4.99 Members Clubs and Miners’ welfare institutes (but not Commercial 

Clubs) may apply for a Club Gaming Permit or a Club Gaming 
Machines permit.  The Club Gaming Permit will enable the premises 

to provide gaming machines (up to 3 machines from categories B3A, 
B4, C or D), equal chance gaming and games of chance as set out in 
forthcoming regulations.  A Club Gaming machine permit will enable 

the premises to provide gaming machines (up to 3 machines from 
categories B3A, B4, C or D). (Only one of the 3 machines can be a 

category B3A). 
 
4.100 Members clubs must have at least 25 members and be established 

and conducted “wholly or mainly” for purposes other than gaming, 
unless the gaming is permitted by separate regulations.  (It is 

anticipated that this will cover bridge and whist clubs, which will 
replicate the position under the Gaming Act 1968).  A members’ club 
must be permanent in nature, not established to make commercial 

profit, and controlled by its members equally.  Examples include 
working men’s clubs, branches of the Royal British Legion and clubs 

with political affiliations. 
 

4.101 The Licensing Authority will therefore require applicants for permits 
to supply sufficient information and documents to enable it to satisfy 
itself that the club meets the requirements of the Act to obtain a Club 

Gaming Permit. 
  

4.102 The Licensing Authority may only refuse an application on the 
grounds that:- 
 

(a) the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or 
commercial club or miners’ welfare institute and therefore is 

not entitled to receive the type of permit for which it has 
applied; 

(b) the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children 

and/or young persons; 

Page 53



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  34 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

(c) an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been 
committed by the applicant while providing gaming facilities; 

(d) a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the 
previous ten years; or 

(e) an objection has been lodged by the Gambling Commission or 

the police. 
 

4.103 There is a ‘fast-track’ procedure available under the Act for premises 
which hold a Club Premises Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 
(Schedule 12 paragraph 10).  Under the fast-track procedure there is 

no opportunity for objections to be made by the Gambling 
Commission or the police, and the grounds upon which the Licensing 

Authority can refuse a permit are reduced.  The grounds on which an 
application under the process may be refused are:- 

 
(a) that the club is established primarily for gaming, other than 

gaming prescribed under schedule 12; 

(b) that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant 
provides facilities for other gaming; or 

(c) that a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the 
applicant in the last ten years has been cancelled." 

 

4.104 There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits that no child 
uses a category B or C machine on the premises and that the holder 

complies with any relevant provision of a code of practice about the 
location and operation of gaming machines. 

 

4.105 Club Gaming Permits and Club Machine Permits will have effect for 
ten years, unless it ceases to have effect because it is surrendered or 

lapses or is renewed. However, a permit granted under the fast-track 
procedure does not expire, unless it ceases to have effect because it 
is surrendered, cancelled or forfeited or it lapses. 

  
A permit will lapse if the holder of the permit stops being a club or 

miners’ welfare institute, or if it no longer qualifies under the fast-
track system for a permit. In addition, a permit will cease to have 
effect upon being surrendered to the Authority. A notice to surrender 

must be accompanied by the permit or a statement explaining why it 
cannot be produced. The Licensing Authority must inform the Police 

and the Commission when a permit has been surrendered or lapsed. 
 

The Licensing Authority may cancel the permit if:  

 the premises are used wholly by children and/or young persons  

 an offence or breach of a permit condition has been committed 
in the course of gaming activities by the permit holder.  

 

Reference here to ‘a permit condition’ means a condition in the Act or 
in regulations that the permit is operating under.  

 
Before cancelling a permit, the Licensing Authority will give the 
permit holder at least 21 days’ notice of the intention to cancel and 

consider any representations that they may make.  

Page 54



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  35 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 
The Licensing Authority will hold a hearing if the permit holder so 

requests and will comply with any other procedural requirements set 
out in regulations. If there is no appeal, the cancellation will take 
effect 21 days after notice of the intention to cancel was given. The 

Licensing Authority will notify the permit holder, the Commission and 
the police that the permit has been cancelled and the reasons for the 

cancellation.  
 
4.106 In accordance with paragraph 24 of Schedule 12 of the Act, an 

application for renewal of a permit must be made during the period 
beginning three months before the licence expires and ending six 

weeks before it expires. The procedure for renewal is the same as for 
an application.  

 
The duration of the permit will not be curtailed while a renewal 
application is pending, including an appeal against a decision not to 

renew.  
 

If, at the time a permit is renewed, the applicant holds a club 
premises certificate, the fast-track procedure will apply as it does 
when application is first made for the permit. 

 

Temporary Use Notices 
 

4.107 These allow the use of premises for gambling where there is no  
premises licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use the 

premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling.  
 

As with "premises", the definition of "a set of premises" will be a 

question of fact in the particular circumstances of each notice that is 
given.  In the Act "premises" is defined as including "any place".  In 

considering whether a place falls within the definition of "a set of 
premises", the Licensing Authority will need to look at, amongst other 
things, the ownership/occupation and control of the premises.  

Licensing Authority will consider objecting to notices where it appears 
that their effect would be to permit regular gambling in a place that 

could be described as one set of premises. 
 

Premises that might be suitable for a temporary use notice would 

include hotels, conference centres and sporting venues. A temporary 
use notice may only be granted to a person or company holding a 

relevant operating licence.  
 

Temporary use notices may only be used to permit the provision of 

facilities for equal chance gaming, where the gaming is intended to 
produce a single overall winner. Equal chance gaming is gaming 

which does not involve playing or staking against a bank and gives 
equally favourable chances to all participants. Examples of equal 
chance gaming include games such as dominoes, cribbage, bingo and 

poker. 
 

Page 55



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  36 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Occasional Use Notices for Betting on Tracks 
 

4.108 The Licensing Authority has very little discretion as regards these 
notices aside from ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a 
calendar year is not exceeded.  The Licensing Authority will however 

consider the definition of a ‘track’ and whether the applicant is 
permitted to avail him/herself of the notice.  

 
Whilst tracks are normally thought of as permanent racecourses, this 
can also include land which has a number of uses for example 

agricultural land upon which a point-to-point meeting takes place. 
Land used temporarily as a track can qualify, provided races or 

sporting events take place or will take place there. The track need not 
be a permanent fixture.  

 
4.109 The Licensing Authority will share information with the Gambling 

Commission in relation to any Occasional Use Notices received. The 

Licensing Authority may also work in partnership with the Gambling 
Commission to carry out test purchase operations involving licensed 

operators that are providing facilities for betting in reliance on an 
Occasional Use Notice. Further information regarding Occasional Use 
Notices can be found at:   

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-
businesses/Compliance/Sector-specific-

compliance/Betting/Occasional-Use-Notices-OUNs.aspx 
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/authorities/guide/occasion
al-use-notices-ouns 

 
Lotteries  

 
4.110 A lottery is any arrangement that satisfies all of the criteria contained   

within the statutory description of either a simple lottery or a 

complex lottery, under s.14 of the Act.  
 

An arrangement is a simple lottery if:  
 persons are required to pay to participate  

 one or more prizes are allocated to one or more members of a 

class  

 the prizes are allocated by a process which relies wholly on 
chance.  

 
An arrangement is a complex lottery if:  

 persons are required to pay to participate  

 one or more prizes are allocated to one or more members of a 
class  

 the prizes are allocated by a series of processes  

 the first of those processes relies wholly on chance.  
 

conducted:  
 for charitable purposes, as defined in s.2 of the Charities Act 

2006  

Page 56

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-businesses/Compliance/Sector-specific-compliance/Betting/Occasional-Use-Notices-OUNs.aspx
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-businesses/Compliance/Sector-specific-compliance/Betting/Occasional-Use-Notices-OUNs.aspx
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-businesses/Compliance/Sector-specific-compliance/Betting/Occasional-Use-Notices-OUNs.aspx


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  37 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 for the purpose of enabling participation in, or of supporting, 
sport, athletics or a cultural activity  

 for any other non-commercial purpose other than that of 
private gain.  

 

It is inherent in this definition that the society must have been 
established for one of the permitted purposes as set out in section 19 

of the Act, and that the proceeds of any lottery must be devoted to 
those purposes. It is not permissible to establish a society whose sole 
purpose is to facilitate lotteries.  

 
The Licensing Authority will consider the Gambling Commission’s 

additional guidance relating to small society lottery applications. 
  

There are a number of lotteries that are considered exempt therefore 
requiring no licence. Further details regarding exempt lotteries can be 
found at https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/Organising-

small-lotteries.pdf.  
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/public-and-

players/guide/page/types-of-lottery-you-can-run-without-a-licence 
 
4.111 The Licensing Authority with which a small society lottery is required 

to register must be in the area where their principal office is located. 
If the Licensing Authority believes that a society’s principal office is 

situated in another area, it will inform the society and the other 
Licensing Authority as soon as possible.  

 

4.112 Applications for small society lottery registrations must be in the form 
prescribed by the Secretary of State and be accompanied by both the 

required registration fee and all necessary documents required by the 
Licensing Authority to assess the application.  

 

If there is any doubt as to the status of a society that makes 
application for registration to carry on small society lotteries, the 

Licensing Authority may require the society to provide documentary 
evidence in support of their application. The types of evidence that 
may be required include, but are not restricted to- 

 
 A list of the members of the society  

 The society’s constitution or a similar document setting out the 
aims and objectives of the society and its governance 
arrangements  

 A written declaration from the applicant stating that they 
represent a bona fide non-commercial society.  

 
4.113 The Licensing Authority shall refuse an application for registration if   

in the period of five years ending with the date of the application—  

 
 an operating licence held by the applicant for registration has 

been revoked under section 119(1) of the Act, or  

 an application for an operating licence made by the applicant 

for registration has been refused.  

Page 57

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/authorities/guide/page/la-bulletin-january-2020-feature-article-small-society-lottery-applications
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/Organising-small-lotteries.pdf
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/Organising-small-lotteries.pdf
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/public-and-players/guide/page/types-of-lottery-you-can-run-without-a-licence
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/public-and-players/guide/page/types-of-lottery-you-can-run-without-a-licence


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  38 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 
The Licensing Authority may refuse an application for registration if 

they think that—  
 

 the applicant is not a non-commercial society,  

 a person who will or may be connected with the promotion of 
the lottery has been convicted of a relevant offence, or  

 information provided in or with the application for registration 

is false or misleading.  
 

The Licensing Authority may only refuse an application for 

registration after the society has had the opportunity to make 
representations at a formal hearing. If the Licensing Authority is 

minded to refuse registration, it will inform the society of the reasons 
why it is minded to do so and provide it with an outline of the 
evidence on which it has reached that preliminary conclusion, in order 

to enable representations to be made.  
 

Any representations received will be considered at a formal hearing 
and the following principles will be applied when reaching a decision:  

 

 Whether allowing the registration of the society would be 
consistent with the Act  

 Whether allowing the registration of the society would be 
consistent with the promotion of the licensing objectives  

 Whether allowing the registration of the society would be 

consistent with any relevant code of practise issued by the 
Gambling Commission  

 
Promotion of small society lotteries once registered  
 

4.114 Participation in a lottery is a form of gambling, and as such the     
Licensing Authority requires societies that it registers to conduct their 

lotteries in a socially responsible manner and in accordance with the 
Act.  

 

4.115 The Act requires that lottery tickets may only be sold by persons that 
are aged 16 or over to persons that are aged 16 or over.  

 
As the minimum age for participation in a lottery is 16, the Licensing 
Authority expects those societies that it registers to have effective 

procedures to minimise the risk of lottery tickets being sold to 
children, including procedures for:  

 
 checking the age of apparently underage purchasers of lottery 

tickets  

 taking action where there are unlawful attempts to purchase 
tickets.  

 
4.116 Lotteries may involve the issuing of physical or virtual tickets to  

Page 58



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  39 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

participants (a virtual ticket being non-physical, for example in the 
form of an email or text message). All tickets must state:  

 
 the name of the promoting society  

 the price of the ticket, which must be the same for all tickets  

 the name and address of the member of the society who is 
designated as having responsibility at the society for promoting 

small lotteries or, if there is one, the external lottery manager 
(ELM)  

 the date of the draw, or information which enables the date to 

be determined.  
 

The requirement to provide this information can be satisfied by 
providing an opportunity for the participant to retain the message 

electronically or print it.  
 
4.117 With regards to where small society lottery tickets may be sold, the  

Licensing Authority applies the following criteria to all small society 
lottery operators:  

 
Lottery tickets must not be sold to a person in any street. For these 
purposes ‘street’ includes any bridge, road, lane, footway, subway, 

square, court, alley or passage (including passages through enclosed 
premises) whether a thoroughfare or not. Tickets may, however, be 

sold in a street from a static structure such as a kiosk or display 
stand. Tickets may also be sold door to door.  

 

This approach is consistent with the operating licence conditions 
imposed upon operators of large society lotteries and local authority 

lotteries.  
 
Financial Returns  

 
4.118 As the purpose of permitted lotteries is to raise money for non- 

commercial causes, the Act requires that a minimum proportion of 
the money raised by the lottery is channelled to the goals of the 
society that promoted the lottery. If a small society lottery does not 

comply with these limits it will be in breach of the Act’s provisions, 
and consequently be liable to prosecution.  

 
The limits are as follows:  

 

 at least 20% of the lottery proceeds must be applied to the 
purposes of the society  

 no single prize may be worth more than £25,000  

 rollovers between lotteries are only permitted where every 
lottery affected is also a small society lottery promoted by the 
same society, and the maximum single prize is £25,000  

 every ticket in the lottery must cost the same and the society 
must take payment for the ticket fee before entry into the 

draw is allowed  

Page 59



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  40 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 
4.119 The Act sets out the information that the promoting society of a small 

society lottery must send as returns to the licensing authority with 
which it is registered, following each lottery held. This information 
allows the Licensing Authority to assess whether financial limits are 

being adhered to and to ensure that any money raised is applied for 
the proper purpose.  

 
The following information must be submitted:  

 

 the arrangements for the lottery – specifically the date on 
which tickets were available for sale or supply, the dates of any 

draw and the value of prizes, including any donated prizes and 
any rollover  

 the total proceeds of the lottery  

 the amounts deducted by the promoters of the lottery in 
providing prizes, including prizes in accordance with any 

rollovers  

 the amounts deducted by the promoters of the lottery in 

respect of costs incurred in organising the lottery  

 the amount applied to the purpose for which the promoting 
society is conducted (this must be at least 20% of the 
proceeds)  

 whether any expenses incurred in connection with the lottery 

were not paid for by deduction from the proceeds, and, if so, 
the amount of expenses and the sources from which they were 
paid.  

 
The Act also requires that returns must:  

 
 be sent to the Licensing Authority no later than three months 

after the date of the lottery draw, or in the case of ‘instant 

lotteries’ (scratch cards) within three months of the last date 
on which tickets were on sale  

 be signed (electronic signatures are acceptable if the return is 

sent electronically) by two members of the society, who must 
be aged 18 or older, are appointed for the purpose in writing 
by the society or, if it has one, its governing body, and be 

accompanied by a copy of their letter or letters of 
appointment.  

 
The Licensing Authority allows for returns to be sent to them both 
electronically and manually. The form of returns required can be 

downloaded from the Licensing Authority’s website.  
 

Where societies run more than one lottery in a calendar year, the 
Licensing Authority will monitor the cumulative totals of returns to 
ensure that societies do not breach the annual monetary limit of 

£250,000 on ticket sales.  
 

Page 60



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  41 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

The Licensing Authority will notify the Commission if returns reveal 
that a society’s lotteries have exceeded the values permissible, and 

such notifications will be copied to the society in question.  
 
Revocation of a registration  

 
4.120 The Licensing Authority may determine to revoke the registration of a  

society if it thinks that they would have had to, or would be entitled 
to, refuse an application for registration if it were being made at that 
time.  

 
Revocations cannot take place unless the society has been given an 

opportunity to make representations at a hearing. In preparation for 
this, the Licensing Authority will inform the society of the reasons 

why it is minded to revoke the registration and provide them with the 
evidence on which it has reached that preliminary conclusion.  

 

Any representations received will be considered at a formal hearing 
and the following principles will be applied when reaching a decision:  

 
 Whether allowing the registration of the society to continue 

would be consistent with the Act  

 Whether allowing the registration of the society to continue 
would be consistent with the promotion of the licensing 
objectives  

 Whether allowing the registration of the society to continue 
would be consistent with any relevant code of practise issued 
by the Gambling Commission.  

 
5. Policy Details  

 
5.1 In developing this policy the Council has had regard to: 
 

(a) The Gambling Act 2005 and subsequent regulations  
 

(b) Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to take all 
responsible steps to reduce crime and disorder within the county;  
 

(c) The Regulators Compliance Code (set out under the Legislative 
and Regulatory Reform Act 2006) not to impede economic progress 

by the regulations we set out and to particularly consider the impact 
of regulations on small businesses; and  

 
(d) The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 to ensure 
requirements are: 

 
i) non–discriminatory  

ii) justified by an overriding reason relating to the public 
interest  

iii) proportionate to that public interest objective  

iv) clear and unambiguous  
v) objective  

Page 61



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  42 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

vi) made public in advance, and transparent and accessible  

6. Consultation and Engagement  

6.1 The Council intends to consult on this policy between 5 September 
and 31 October 2022. 

 

Consultation took place with a number of agencies, some of which 

are detailed at Appendix C. A full list of the persons / bodies who 
were consulted can be provided upon receipt of a written request.  

7.  Performance and Risk Management 

 
7.1 The Policy will be regularly reviewed and monitored to ensure that it 

reflects current legislation, its effective, up to date and achieving a 
responsible regulatory framework for Cornwall.  

7.2 This will be achieved by monitoring the outcome of hearings, appeals 
through Magistrates courts, developments in legislation, by having 
regard to stated cases, local needs and economic impacts.  

7.3 The Council will ensure that Members and Council officers are 
involved in the development and implementation of this policy, the 

enforcement of the licensing regime and anyone involved in the day 
to day operation of the service receives adequate training. 

7.4 Training will be carried out following any review and amendment of 
the policy, alterations to legislative requirements or fundamental 
changes to the provision of the licensing service.  

7.5 Three-yearly policy reviews are included within the Neighbourhoods 
and Public Protection Service Plan.   

8.  Communicating the Policy  

8.1 This policy is available on the Council’s website and will be made 
available at the main Council Offices in Camborne and Bodmin. In 

addition responsible authorities will be provided with a copy of this 
policy document.  

8.2 Any amendment to the policy will be communicated to the 
community by way of a press release on the Council’s website. 
Persons having been actively involved in any consultation on the 

policy will be notified directly.  

9. Breaches and Non-Compliance  

 
Inspection and Enforcement  

 

9.1 The principles which the Licensing Authority will apply, in exercising 
its functions with respect to the inspection of premises and the 

powers it is given to institute criminal proceedings in respect of the 

Page 62



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  43 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

offences specified, will be guided by any advice issued by the 
Gambling Commission and will endeavour to be: - 

 
 Proportionate: only intervene when necessary:  remedies will be 

appropriate to the risk posed and costs identified and minimised; 

 Accountable:  able to justify decisions and be subject to public 
scrutiny; 

 Consistent: be joined-up and implement rules and standards fairly; 
 Transparent:  be open and keep regulations simple and user-

friendly; and 

 Targeted:  regulate by focussing on the problem, and minimising 
side effects.  

 
Under the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006, any person 

exercising a specified regulatory function has a legal duty to have 
regard to the statutory principles of good regulation in the exercise of 
the function. These provide that regulatory activities should be 

carried out in a way which is transparent, accountable, proportionate, 
and consistent and should be targeted only at cases in which action is 

needed. The Gambling Commission has regard to these principles in 
relation to its responsibilities and also has regard to the requirements 
of the Regulators’ Compliance Code (“the Code”). The purpose of the 

Code is to promote efficient and effective approaches to regulatory 
inspection and enforcement which improve regulatory outcomes 

without imposing unnecessary burdens on business 
 
9.2 In accordance with the Gambling Commission’s Guidance the 

Licensing Authority will endeavour to avoid duplication with other 
regulatory regimes so far as is reasonably practicable.   

 
9.3 The Licensing Authority will endeavour to adopt targeted risk-based 

inspection regimes in accordance with any Codes of Practice issued 

concerning the inspection of premises and will also have regard to 
any guidance or risk models proposed by the Gambling Commission.   

 
9.4 The main enforcement role for the Licensing Authority under the Act 

will be to ensure that premises issued with premises licences and 

other permissions it authorises comply with the law.  Under the 
provisions of the Act, the Licensing Authority will also follow up any 

complaints and enquiries about premises and persons / organisations. 
 
9.5 The Gambling Commission will be the enforcement body for the 

operating licences and personal licences that it issues.  The Licensing 
Authority will, therefore, not deal directly with any concerns relating 

to the manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines, but will 
notify the Gambling Commission of any such concerns. 

 

9.6 The Licensing Authority, in exercising its regulatory functions, will be 
mindful of any advice issued as a result of the developments of the 

work of the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills. For more 
information go to http://www.bis.gov.uk/.  

 

Page 63

http://www.bis.gov.uk/


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  44 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

9.7 Any enforcement action taken on any premises or individual will be in 
accordance with Cornwall Council’s Enforcement Policy. 

 
Exchange of Information 

 

9.8 The Licensing Authority will ensure it exercises its functions in 
accordance with the laws on exchange of information with respect to 

the exchange of information between it and the Gambling 
Commission and its functions under the Act with respect to the 
exchange of information between it and other persons listed in 

Schedule 6 to the Act. 
 

9.9 The Licensing Authority will act in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act in its exchange of information whilst complying with the 

provisions of the General Data Protection Regulations.  The Licensing 
Authority will have regard to any guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission as well as any relevant regulations issued by the 

Secretary of State under the powers provided in the Act.   
 

9.10 The Licensing Authority will have regard to any advice given by the 
Gambling Commission when establishing local protocols regarding 
information exchange with other bodies and which will be available 

upon written request. 
 

9.11 Representations made by interested parties will be disclosed in full to 
the applicant and to Members (councillors) determining the 
application at any hearing.  Disclosure will normally include the 

identity of the person / body making the representation.  Anonymous 
representations will not be accepted as the Licensing Authority must 

be satisfied that the representation is made by an ‘interested party’ 
as defined in the Act. 

10. Information and Training  

10.1 The information can be viewed at www.opsi.gov.uk  

 Gambling Act 2005  

 Gambling Commission Guidance issued to Local Authorities  

 
 Gambling Commission Codes of Practice  

 The Policing and Crime Act 2009 

 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

 Human Rights Act 1998  

 Equality Act 2010 

 

Page 64

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2018/12/contents/enacted
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  45 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

11. Evaluation and Review  

 

This policy will be reviewed on a three yearly basis. Any proposed                       
amendments to the Policy will be fully consulted upon, prior to re-adoption 
by the Council.  

This policy will be subject to review by 31 January 2022 2026 although the 
policy may be subject to further review changes as a result of the 

forthcoming Gambling Review. 
 

12. Further Information * 

 
Useful web-links:- 

 
Gambling Act 2005 (legislation.gov.uk) 

 
The Gambling Act 2005 (Premises Licences and Provisional Statements) 
Regulations 2007 (legislation.gov.uk) 

 
Guidance to licensing authorities - Gambling Commission 

 
Gambling Commission website - Gambling Commission 
 

The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2007 (legislation.gov.uk) 

 
Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice - Gambling Commission 
 

Pubs and clubs toolkit - Gambling Commission 
 

Premises assessments toolkit and Primary Authority agreements - Gambling 
Commission 
 

Occasional use notices (OUNs) - Gambling Commission 
 

Types of lottery you can run without a licence - Gambling Commission 
 
Data Protection Act 2018 (legislation.gov.uk) 

 
Office for Product Safety and Standards 

 
* This section will be kept under review and may be updated by the 
Licensing Service 

 
If any of the web-links referred to above or throughout this document are 

not able to be accessed, please contact the Licensing Service to request the 
necessary information be emailed or posted. 
 

 
 

Page 65

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/section/2
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/459/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/459/contents/made
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/1409/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/1409/contents/made
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/authorities/guide/pubs-and-clubs-toolkit
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/authorities/guide/premises-assessments-toolkit
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/authorities/guide/premises-assessments-toolkit
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/authorities/guide/occasional-use-notices-ouns
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/public-and-players/guide/page/types-of-lottery-you-can-run-without-a-licence
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2018/12/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/office-for-product-safety-and-standards


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  46 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

If you would like this information in another format please contact: 

Cornwall Council 

County Hall 
Treyew Road 
Truro TR1 3AY 

Telephone: 0300 1234 100 

Email: enquiries@cornwall.gov.uk 

www.cornwall.gov.uk 

Please consider the environment. Only print this document if it cannot be 
sent electronically. 

You can contact the Council’s Licensing Service at either Camborne or 
Bodmin.  

Alternatively call 0300 1234 212 or email on licensing@cornwall.gov.uk  

 

 
 

 

Page 66

mailto:enquiries@cornwall.gov.uk
http://www.cornwall.gov.uk/
mailto:licensing@cornwall.gov.uk


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  47 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 
Appendix A – Glossary / Definitions 

 
 

The “Act”  means the Gambling Act 2005 

Adult Gaming 

Centres (AGC) 

Premises with an adult gaming centre premises licence, 

authorising the use of Category B machines (restricted to 
B3 and B4 machines). 

Amusement 
Arcades 

These are not referred to as such in the Act.  See Adult 
Gaming Centres and Family Entertainment Centres 

(Licensed & Unlicensed). 

BACTA British Amusement Catering Trade Association  

Betting ‘Betting’ means making or accepting a bet on the outcome 
of a race, competition, or any other event; the likelihood of 

anything occurring or not occurring; or whether anything is 
true or not true. 

Betting Machines A machine which has been designed or adapted for use to 
bet on future real events, such as horse racing, and used 

as a substitute for placing a bet over a counter. 

Bingo Bingo has no statutory definition in the Act.  It has its 

ordinary and natural meaning.  The distinction between 
cash bingo, where cash prizes were derived from the 
stakes and prize bingo, where prizes were not directly 

related to the stakes paid, under the previous legislation 
has been removed for commercial operators.  A holder of a 

bingo operating licence will be able to offer any type of 
bingo game, whether cash or prize.  Alcohol-licensed 
premises, clubs and miners’ welfare institutes are able to 

offer bingo in all forms (up to a total weekly prize value of 
less than £2,000). 

Prize bingo is traditionally played in arcades, or travelling 
funfairs.  For these operators, prize bingo is subsumed 

within the allowances for prize gaming in the Act.  This 
means that AGCs, both licensed and unlicensed FECs, 
travelling fairs, and any premises with a prize gaming 

permit will be able to offer prize gaming, which includes 
prize bingo.  Limits have been set in Government 

Regulations. 

Child / Children  & 

Young persons 

In the Act:-  

 ‘Child’ means an individual who is less than 16 years old 
‘Young person’ means an individual who is 16 -18yrs old 

Club Gaming 
Permits 

Issued by the Licensing Authority authorising the provision 
of facilities for gaming on premises where a members’ club 
or miners’ welfare institute operates.  Such permits 

authorise up to 3 gaming machines (Categories B3A, B4, C 
or D but note that only one of the 3 machines can be a B3A 

category), the provision of facilities for some gaming 
activities, and facilities for games of chance subject to 

regulations etc. 

Page 67

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/section/2


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  48 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 

Club Machine 
Permits 

Issued by the Licensing Authority authorising up to 3 
gaming machines (Categories B3A, B4, C or D but note 

that only one of the 3 machines can be a B3A category) on 
premises where a members’ club or miners’ welfare 

institute operates (and for use only by members of the 
club/institute and their guests).  Conditions are applied to 

such permits as required by Section 273 of the Act. 

Equal chance 

gaming 

This is a game where the chances of winning are equally 

favourable to all participants and which does not involve 
playing or staking against a “bank”.  It is immaterial how 
the “bank” is described and whether or not it is controlled 

by a player. 

Exempt activities Private betting is betting which takes place between 

inhabitants of the same premises or between employees of 
the same employer. 

Private gaming (which is gaming that takes place in private 
dwellings and on domestic occasions) is exempt from 
licensing or registration providing that no charge is made 

for participating; only equally chance gaming takes place; 
and it does not occur in a place to which the public have 

access. 

Gambling Defined as either gaming, betting or participating in a 

lottery. 

Games of chance Includes games that involve both chance and skill.  This 

includes games in which skill can eliminate an element of 
chance and includes games that are presented as involving 

an element of chance.  It does not include a sport.  Playing 
a game of chance need not involve other participants. 

Gaming Playing a game of chance for a prize. 

Gaming machines A machine designed or adapted for use by individuals to 

gamble (whether or not the machine can also be used for 
other purposes).  This does not include a machine designed 

to bet on future real events, or to play bingo.  See also 
Appendix E. 

Licensed Family 
Entertainment 
Centres (LFECs) 

Premises (other than AGCs) which are wholly or mainly 
used for provision of gaming machines and licensed via an 
‘FEC premises licence’ for the provision of Category C or 

D gaming machines. 

“Licensing 

Authority”  

means Cornwall Council 

Non-commercial 
gambling 

When no part of the proceeds/profits will be for private 
gain.  Proceeds/profits are sums raised by the organisers, 
for example, by way of fees for entrance or participation, 

or by way of stakes, minus an amount deducted by the 
organiser in respect of costs reasonably incurred in 

organising the event including the provision of a prize.  
Certain conditions and limits apply which are prescribed in 
the Act and its Regulations.   

 

Page 68



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  49 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 

Occasional Use 
Notices 

Notice given under section 39 in respect of a track which is 
intended to be used to accept bets.  The notice can only be 

given by a person who is an occupier of the track or 
responsible for the administration of events on the track.   

Off-course betting Off-course betting operators may operate self contained 
betting premises within a track premises as well as betting 

premises away from the track 

On-course betting An on-course betting operator is one who comes onto a 

track temporarily while races are taking place, and 
operates at the track side. 

Operating licence An operating licence is a licence issued to the gambling 
premises operator by the Gambling Commission. 

Personal licence A personal Licence is a licence issued to individuals by the 
Gambling Commission. 

Pool betting Betting is ‘pool betting’ if made on terms that all or part of 
winnings: - 

(a) shall be determined by reference to the aggregate of 
stakes paid or agreed to be paid by the persons 

betting 

(b) shall be divided among the winners; or 

(c) shall or may be something other than money 

Premises Licences A licence issued by the Licensing Authority, which 
authorises premises to be used for:- 

a) the operation of a casino (a ‘casino premises  licence’) 

b) the provision of facilities for the playing of bingo  (a 

‘bingo premises licence’) 

c) making Category B, C or D gaming machines available 

for use (an ‘adult gaming centre premises licence’) 

d) making Category C and D gaming machines available for 
use (a ‘ family entertainment centre premises licence’) 

or  

e) the provision of facilities for betting, whether by making 

or accepting bets, by acting as a betting intermediary or 
providing other facilities for the making or accepting of 
bets (a ‘betting premises licence’) 

Prize Gaming 
Permits 

Permits issued by the Licensing Authority authorising a 
person to provide facilities for gaming with prizes on a 

specified premises.  Section 188 of the Act defines gaming 
as prize gaming if the nature and size of the prizes is not 

determined by the number of people playing and the 
amount paid for or raised by the gaming.  The prizes will 
be determined by the operator before play commences. 

Provisional 

Statements 

An application for a provisional statement is an application 

in respect of premises in anticipation (by the applicant) 
that the premises will be constructed, altered or occupied 
for the purpose.  A provisional statement (if granted by the 

Licensing Authority) is followed by an application for a 

Page 69



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  50 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

premises licence once the premises are appropriated, 
altered or built, and the Licensing Authority must then 

disregard any representations made, unless the 
representations address matters that could not have been 

addressed in relation to the provisional statement 
application or reflect a change in the applicant’s 

circumstances. 

Remote gambling Gambling in which persons participate by the use of remote 

communication. Remote communication under section 4 of 
the Gambling Act 2005 means using the internet, 
telephone, television, radio or any other kind of electronic 

or other technology for facilitating communication. 

Small society 

lotteries 

Proceeds of the lottery do not exceed £20,000 or, if it is 

promoted wholly or partly at a time in a calendar year, the 
aggregate proceeds in a calendar year do not exceed 

£250,000 (subject to other conditions set out in Part 4 of 
the Act).  A small society lottery is exempt from the 
licensing requirements providing certain conditions are 

met, however, the promoting society is required to be 
registered with the local authority (Part 5). 

Street This is defined in the GA05 (Mandatory and Default 
Conditions) Regulations as “including any bridge, road, 

lane, footway, subway, square, court, alley or passageway 
(including passages through enclosed premises such as 

shopping malls) whether a thoroughfare or not” 

Temporary Use 

Notices 

Notification by the holder of an operating licence that they 

intend to use an unlicensed premises for gambling on 
specified days  not exceeding  21 days in any 12 month 
period.  Such notices are required to be given to the 

Licensing Authority at least 3 months prior to the proposed 
use of the premises. 

The Gambling 
Commission 

Established on 1 October 2005, the Commission has 
responsibility for the regulation of all commercial gambling 

in Great Britain (other than spread betting or the National 
Lottery).   

Tracks A horse race course, dog track or other premises on any 
part of which a race or other sporting event takes place or 

is intended to take place. 

Travelling fairs A ‘fair’ is a fair consisting wholly or mainly for the provision 

of amusements, and a ‘travelling fair’ is a fair held wholly 
or mainly by persons who travel from place to place for the 
purpose of providing fairs, and the fair is held at a place 

which has been used for the provision of a fair on not more 
than 27 days in that calendar year. 

Unlicensed Family 
Entertainment 

Centres (uFECs) 

Premises (other than AGCs or Licensed FECs) which are 
wholly or mainly used for the provision of gaming machines 

(a family entertainment centre) and authorised via an ‘FEC 
gaming machine permit’ to make Category D machines 

available for use in a premises. 

Page 70



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  51 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Note 
All references to the Gambling Commissions' Guidance for Local Authorities 
refer to the 4th Edition Guidance published in September 2012 latest version which 
was last updated in April 2021. 
 

Page 71

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  52 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Appendix B - Map of Cornwall  
 

 

Page 72



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  53 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Appendix C – List of Consultees 
 
Consultation included the following agencies; this is not an exhaustive list.  
 

 The Police  

 Health Authority 

 Local Safeguarding Children Board 

 Fire & Rescue Authority 

 The Licensing Authority 

 The Gambling Commission 

 The Local Planning Authority  

 Environmental Health 

 HM Revenue & Customs 

 Casinos and Bingo Premises 

 Betting Shops 

 Representatives of premises licensed to sell alcohol 

 Amusement Arcades/Family Entertainment Centres 

 Ten Pin Bowling Centres 

 Pools Operators and Lotteries Operators 

 Gaming Machine Suppliers & Bookmakers Association 

 Gambling Help/Support Organisations 

 Other bodies such as Parish Councils, Ward Councillors etc., 
considered to be bodies representing persons who may be 
affected by the exercise of the Authority’s functions under this 

Act. 
 

Page 73



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  54 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Appendix D  
 

List of Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority 

Address Telephone / Email 

Licensing 
Authority 
(Bodmin, Bude, 

Launceston, Looe, 
Callington, 

Saltash, 
Wadebridge, 
Liskeard, St 

Austell, Fowey, 
Lostwithiel, 

Newquay, 
Perranporth, 
St Agnes, Truro, 

The Roseland) 

Licensing Service 
Cornwall Council 
P O Box 676 

Threemilestone 
Truro 

TR1 9EQ 
 
Chy Trevail  

Beacon 
Technology Park 

Bodmin  
PL31 2FR 

01726 223433 or 01208 893346 
 
licensing@cornwall.gov.uk 

 
 

The Licensing 

Authority 
(Camborne, St 

Ives, Penzance, 
Falmouth, The 
Lizard, Helston, 

Redruth) 

Licensing Service 

Cornwall Council 
Dolcoath Avenue 

Camborne  
TR14 8SX 
 

01209 615055 

Gambling 

Commission 

Victoria Square 

House 
Victoria Square 

Birmingham    
B2 4BP 
 

0121 230 6500 

 
info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

 
 

Children 
Safeguarding 

Partnership 

3rd Floor,  
North Wing 

New County Hall 
Truro 

TR1 3AY  
 

0300 1234 101 
 

childrenslicencechecks@cornwall.gov.uk 
 

HM Revenues & 
Customs  

National 
Registration Unit 
Portcullis House 

21 India Street 
Glasgow 

G2 4PZ 
 

0141 555 3492 
 
nrubettinggaming@hmrc.gov.uk 

Page 74

mailto:licensing@cornwall.gov.uk
mailto:info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk
mailto:childrenslicencechecks@cornwall.gov.uk
mailto:nrubettinggaming@hmrc.gov.uk


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  55 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 

Chief Officer of 
Police 

Devon & Cornwall 
Constabulary 

Launceston Police 
Station 

Moorland Road 
Launceston 
PL15 7HY 

 

01566 771309 

 
licensing.team@devonandcornwall.pnn.
police.uk 

Fire & Rescue 

Authority 
 

Cornwall Fire and 

Rescue Service  
St Austell 

Community Fire 
Station  
Carlyon Road  

St Austell  
PL25 4LD 

 

01726 223620 

 
csadmin@fire.cornwall.gov.uk 

Local Planning 

Authority 
 

Planning Service 

Cornwall Council 
Chy Trevail  
Beacon 

Technology Park 
Bodmin  

PL31 2FR 
 

01208 265712 

 
planning.enforcement@cornwall.gov.uk   

Environmental 
Health 
 

Environmental 
Health 
Cornwall Council 

Dolcoath Avenue 
Camborne 

TR14 8SX  
 

0300 1234 212 
 
businesscompliance@cornwall.gov.uk 

 
communityandenvironmentalprotection

@cornwall.gov.uk 

Any other persons 
prescribed by 
regulations made 

by the Secretary 
of State 

The responsible authorities listed are correct at the time of 
printing, but the Act allows for additions to be made by way 
of regulations passed by the Secretary of State.  Details of 

responsible authorities will be provided on request to the 
Licensing Service and will in any case accompany 

application forms issued by the licensing service.  An up to 
date list of contact details will also be available from the 
Council’s Licensing Service. 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 75

mailto:licensingwest@devonandcornwall.pnn.police.uk
mailto:licensingwest@devonandcornwall.pnn.police.uk
mailto:csadmin@fire.cornwall.gov.uk
mailto:planning.enforcement@cornwall.gov.uk
mailto:businesscompliance@cornwall.gov.uk
mailto:communityandenvironmentalprotection@cornwall.gov.uk
mailto:communityandenvironmentalprotection@cornwall.gov.uk


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  56 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

 
 

Responsible authorities also include navigation authorities for vessels 
moored/ berthed/navigated in any water at a time when used for 
licensable activities: - 

 

Maritime and 

Coastguard 
Agency 

Plymouth Main 

Office 
New Fish Market 

Baylys Wharf 
Sutton Harbour 
Plymouth 

PL4 0LH 
 

01752 266211 

 
mcaplymouthadmin@mcga.gov.uk 

 

British Waterways 
Board 

 
 
 

 
Canal & River 

Trust  
 

Willow Grange 
Church Road 

Watford 
Herts 
WD17 4QA 

 
Bumpers Way 

Bumpers Farm 
Chippenham 
SN14 6NG 

 

01923 226422 
 

 
 
 

 
0303 040 4040 

 
customer.services@canalrivertrust.org.
uk 

Environment 

Agency  
(Head Office) 

Rio House 

Waterside Drive 
Aztec West 

Almondsbury  
BS32 4UD 
 

03708 506506 

 
enquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 76

mailto:mcaplymouthadmin@mcga.gov.uk
https://canalrivertrust.org.uk/
https://canalrivertrust.org.uk/
mailto:enquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  57 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Appendix E 
Definition of Gaming Machines 
Based on Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities 
– September 2012  

 
Section 235 of the Act defines a “gaming machine” as “a machine which is 

designed or adapted for use by individuals to gamble (whether or not it can 
also be used for other purposes)”.  This definition is wider than those 
included in previous gaming legislation and covers all types of gambling 

activity which can take place on a machine, including betting on virtual 
events.  However, the following should be noted: 

 there remains a distinction between skill machines and gaming 
machines in that skill machines are unregulated; and 

 section 235 contains important exemptions for equipment that is not 

to be considered a gaming machine, even when gambling can be 
performed on it - for example, a home PC is not to be classed as a 

gaming machine, even though someone can access remote gambling 
facilities on it. 

 

Categories of Gaming Machines 
 

Category of machine Maximum Stake Maximum Prize 

B1 £5 £10,000* 

B2 £100 £500 

B3 £2 £500 

B3A £2 £500 

B4 £2 £400 

C £1 £100 

D non-money prize 
(not crane grab) 

30p £8 

D non-money prize 
(crane grab) 

£1 £50 

D money prize 10p £5 

D combined money and 
non-money prize  

10p  £8 (of which no more than 
£5 may be a money prize) 

D combined money and 

non-money prize (coin 
pusher or penny falls 
machine only)  

20p £20 (of which no more than 
£10 may be a money prize)  

* with option of maximum £20,000 linked progressive jackpot on premises 
basis only 

 

Page 77



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  58 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

It should be noted that these stakes and prizes are subject to change, refer 
to https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/home.aspx for the most up to 
date stakes and prizes.  

Age restrictions 

 Categories  B (including B3A machines offering lottery games) and C 
machines – minimum age of 18 years for all players; 

 Category D – no minimum age for players, however the Secretary of 
State has a reserve of power to set a minimum age for playing 

category D machines with an associated power to exempt certain 
machines like penny pushers; 

 The holder of a permit or premises licence will have to ensure that he 

complies with the Codes of Practice issued by the Commission on the 
location of and access to such machines by children and young 

persons, and their separation from category C and B machines where 
those are also located on the same premises. 

 

Summary of Maximum Number of Machines by Premises Type 
 

 Machine category 

Premises Type A B1 B2 B3 B4 C D 
Regional casino (machine/table 
ratio 25-1 up to maximum) 

Maximum of 1250 machines 
Any combination of machines in categories A to D, within the total limit 

of 1250 (subject to table ratio) 

Large casino (machine/table 
ratio of 5-1 up to maximum) 

 Maximum of 150 machines 
Any combination of machines in categories B to D (except B3A 
machines), within the total limit of 150 (subject to machine / 

table ratio) 

Small casino (machine/table 
ratio of 2-1 up to maximum) 

 Maximum of 80 machines 
Any combination of machines in categories B to D (except B3A 

machines), within the total limit of 80 (subject to machine/ 
table ratio) 

Pre-2005 Act casinos (no 
machine/table ratio) 

 Maximum of 20 machines categories B to D (except B3A 
machines) or any number of C or D machines instead 

Betting premises and tracks 
occupied by Pool Betting 

  Maximum of 4 machines categories B2 to D (expect 
B3A machines) 

Bingo premises    maximum of 20% 

of the total 
number of gaming 
machines which 

are available for 
use on the 
premises 

categories B3 or 
B4** 

No limit C or D 

machines 

Adult gaming centre    maximum of 20% 
of the total 

number of gaming 
machines which 
are available for 

use on the 
premises 

categories B3 or 
B4** 

No limit C or D 
machines 

(Licensed) Family entertainment 
centre (with premises licence) 

     No limit on category 
C or D machines 

(Unlicensed) Family       No limit 

Page 78

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/home.aspx


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  59 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

entertainment centre (with 
permit) 

on 
category 

D 
machines 

Clubs or miners’ welfare 
institutes with permits 

    Maximum of 3 machines in 
categories B3A or B4 to D* 

Qualifying alcohol licensed 
premises 

     1 or 2 machines of 
category C or D 

automatic upon 
notification 

Qualifying alcohol licensed 
premises with gaming machine 
permit 

     Number of category 
C-D machines as 

specified on permit 

Travelling fair       No limit 

on 
category 

D 
machines 

 A B1 B2 B3 B4 C D 

 

* It should be noted that members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes are 
entitled to site a total of three machines in categories B3A to D and 
commercial clubs are entitled to a total of three machines in categories B4 

to D.    
 

** Adult gaming centre and bingo premises are entitled to make  
available a number of Category B gaming machines not exceeding 
20% of the total number of gaming machines which are available 

for use on the premises. The Gambling Commission’s available for 
use guidance makes it clear that for the purpose of calculating the 

category B machine entitlement in gambling premises, gaming 
machines should only be counted if they can be played 
simultaneously by different players without physical hindrance. 

 
Premises in existence before 13 July 2011 are entitled to make 

available four (adult gaming centre premises) or eight (bingo 
premises) category B gaming machines, or 20% of the total number 
of gaming machines, whichever is greater. Adult gaming centre 

premises and bingo premises licences granted on or after 13 July 
2011 but before 01 April 2014 are entitled to a maximum of four or 

eight category B gaming machines or 20% of the total number of 
gaming machines, whichever is the greater; from 01 April 2014 
these premises will be entitled to 20% of the total number of 

gaming machines only. 

Page 79

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/guide/when-a-machine-is-available-for-use
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/guide/when-a-machine-is-available-for-use


 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  60 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Appendix F 

Summary of Licensing Authority delegations permitted under the 

Gambling Act  (Based on Gambling Commission’s Guidance to 
Licensing Authorities September 2012 April 2021) 

 

Matter to be dealt with  
 

Full 
Council 

Sub-committee 
of Regulatory 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

Officers 

Final approval of three year 
licensing policy X   

Policy not to permit casinos X   

Fee setting (when appropriate) X   

Application for premises licences   Where 

representations 
have been 

received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no 

representations 
received/ 

representations 
have been 
withdrawn 

Application for a variation to a 
licence  

 Where 
representations 

have been 
received and not 

withdrawn 

Where no 
representations 

received/ 
representations 

have been 
withdrawn 

Application for a transfer of a 
licence  

 Where 
representations 

have been 

received from the 
Commission 

Where no 
representations 

received from the 

Commission 

Application for a provisional 
statement  

 Where 
representations 

have been 
received and not 

withdrawn 

Where no 
representations 

received/ 
representations 

have been 

withdrawn 

Determination of review of a 

premises licence  
 

 X  

Instigation of review of a 
premises licence 

  X 

Application for club gaming/ 
club machine permits  

 

Where objections 

have been made 
(and not 

withdrawn) 

Where no objections 

made/objections 
have been 

withdrawn 

Cancellation of club gaming/ 

club machine permits 
 
 

 X  

Page 80



 

Draft revised Statement of Principles Gambling Act 2005  61 

2022 version no-2.1 

Information Classification: CONTROLLED 

Matter to be dealt with  
 

Full 
Council 

Sub-committee 
of Regulatory 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

Officers 

Applications for other permits 
 

  X 

Cancellation of licensed premises 
gaming machine permits 

 

  X 

Small Lottery Registration  

Where objections 

have been made 
(and not 

withdrawn) 

Where no objections 

made/objections 
have been 

withdrawn 

Consideration of temporary use 
notice 

 

 

Where objections 

have been made 
(and not 

withdrawn) 

Where no objections 

made/objections 
have been 
withdrawn 

Decision to give a counter notice 
to a temporary use notice 

 

 X  

Give notice to dispense with a 

hearing where all parties 
consider a hearing is 

unnecessary and the 
relevant licensing sub-committee 
have confirmed in writing their 

agreement that a hearing is 
unnecessary 

 

   

 
 

 
X 

 
X Indicates the lowest level to which decisions can be delegated 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



From: Graham Clark  
Sent: 02 September 2022 11:39 
To: STC enquiries  
Subject: Land north of Broad Lane and west of Duck Lane, Trematon 
 
Good morning 
 
I am writing to you on behalf of DS Developments Ltd who are submitting a planning 
application to Cornwall Council for a, 
 
“Rural Exception Site for the erection of eight bungalows, four double garages, two 
affordable self-build plots, parking and access road from the C0122 together with open 
space area” on land north of Broad Lane and west of Duck Lane, Trematon. 
 
The application follows the submission of a PRE-APP with Cornwall Council (Ref: 
PA21/01409/PREAPP). The advice offered has been followed, hence the proposed 
application. 
 
I wondered if the Town Council would like to see a presentation of the proposal to the 
Planning and Licencing Committee at their next meeting for their comment or whether 
Members would be content to consider the application when it is referred to them as 
part of the Council’s consultation procedure. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you. 
 
Regards 
Graham Clark 
 
 
GRAHAM CLARK BA (Hons) DMS MRTPI 
Director  |  Chartered Town Planner  
GRCPlanning Ltd 

 
 
 

Page 82

Agenda Item 9



Page 83



 

SALTASH NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

Page 84



POLICY RUR 2 .4 

 

 

 

PLANNING APPLICATION DESCRIPTION (PA22/07188) 

Hybrid application for Rural Exception Site comprising detailed consent for eight 
bungalows, four double garages, parking, access road and open space area and 
outline consent for two self-build / custom build bungalows with access scale and 
layout to be determined at the outline stage some matters relating to appearance 
and landscaping for determination as reserved matters 

 

Page 85


	Agenda
	5 To receive and approve the minutes from the Planning and Licensing Committee held on Tuesday 16th August 2022 as a true and correct record.
	7 Planning:
	PA22 07351 - Land Opposite 363 New Road Saltash PL12 6HL TREE REPORT
	Email from Planning Officer re location PA22/07351 Land Opposite 363 New Road
	SVTWR - PA22/07700 - 219 Callington Road
	PA22/08092 - STC Vol Tree Wardens Report
	SVTWR - PA22/08143 - Castle Gardens

	8 To receive Cornwall Council Licensing Authority - Draft Revised Gambling Act Statement Statement of Principles and consider any actions.
	Draft Revised Gambling Act Statement

	9 To receive a Pre-Application Presentation for the Land north of Broad Lane and west of Duck Lane, Trematon - GRC Planning Ltd.
	Proposed Site Plan
	Document for presentation


